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About Us

Kontiki Finance Limited is an SPX listed Company established in 2014 to provide competitive
and accessible financing for both consumers and Small-to-Medium size businesses. To support
this, Kontiki Finance is open for business seven days a week and processes applications quickly.
When it comes to finance, Kontiki Finance is a leading alternative to the major Banks and
Finance Companies.

So, whether you're purchasing a car or increasing the size of your vehicle fleet, organizing a
holiday, want to consolidate your debts, or use your motor vehicle as collateral, you can count
on Kontiki Finance to work with you, and provide you with a solution that is right for you.

For our retail and motor vehicle dealer partners, Kontiki Finance is a full-service provider of
accessible and easy to understand financing solutions.
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Snapshots
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Message from
the Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

With improving market conditions, technology and
Management’s guidance, the Group recorded a consolidated Net
Profit After Tax (NPAT) of $7.2m, 69% up from $4.3m in the prior year.

This was the result of increasing sales, reducing impairment expenses and
expense controls.

The Group's return on equity for the year was 23% while earnings per share increased to 7.8 cents,
up from 4.6 cents in the previous year.

The Group's liquidity position remained strong, with holdings of $95.1m in liquidity placement assets
(bank deposits and government bonds) as at year end.

The Directors declared a final dividend of 3.5 cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2022, bringing

a total of 5.0 cents per share paid to our shareholders through interim and final dividends. This is an
increase of 0.5 cents per share over the previous financial year.
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As part of KFL's ongoing corporate social/community responsibility we continued to support local
Sporting Associations and the Fiji Cancer Society. KFL has also established a new working partner
relationship with Diabetes Fiji Inc.

With the encouraging results this past financial year and the outlook on economic recovery remaining
positive, we look forward to creating more opportunities for the Group and for returns to our shareholders.

Your sincerely,

Barry Whiteside,
CF, MA, BA, FAICD
Chairman
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Business
Overview

KFL is licensed by the Reserve Bank of Fiji as a ‘Credit Institution” under the Banking Act, 1995. Under its
Credit Institutions license, KFL is able to offer Term Deposits from members of the public and use those
funds to make loans to clients.

The Company has a wholly owned subsidiary company, Platinum Insurance Limited, which provides Loan
Protection Insurance to KFL loan customers and this is supervised by the Reserve Bank of Vanuatu.

KFLaims to offerinnovative, flexible, and accessible finance solutions to the consumer and SME segments
of the Market. KFL provides this through a highly experienced Management team leveraging intellectual
property and business intelligence proven by them in other markets.

The Company provides a range of finance solutions to its clients including Loans, Term Deposits and
related products and services. These are detailed below:

Loans
KFL provides Personal Loans, Vehicle Financing Loans and other Credit products to clients using three
main distribution channels:

+ Small-to-Medium Business Enterprises (SME's) — KFL offers a range of finance solutions to assist
SME type customers purchase vehicles, equipment or even working capital to manage their cashflow
and grow their business.
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Retail Point of Sale (POS) — loan applications from customers referred to KFL by Merchants. Typically,
such loans are used to finance white goods, brown goods, furniture, and technology goods.

|\IL NeRIK

Critical to the provision of loans is KFL's rigorous credit analysis and approval systems that meet Y e

international best practice, managed by a highly experienced team of local and expatriate staff. KFL's 5o, 1_0 (:__ r:] : | i ] r‘I O‘U’C] t l\je
experienced team also provides customers with valuable advice on structuring their loan portfolios
including refinancing and consolidation.

New Business — loan applications received directly from customers for personal financing, new
purchases, or re-financing of existing loans.

‘.

Term Deposits
Under its Credit Institution License, KFL is able to solicit and accept Term Deposits, which are the primary
source of funding for KFL's loan book. Term Deposits are offered for fixed terms ranging from three months

to ten years, and deposit rates paid by KFL are amongst the most competitive in the market.

Insurance

KFL also finances a range of insurance products to support its credit business, including motor, chattel,
and loan protection insurance. These insurance products allow customers, with KFL's help, to tailor their
loans and manage their risk exposure. These also reduce credit risk for KFL. Loan Protection Insurance is

provided through KFL's wholly owned captive insurer, Platinum Insurance Limited.

Insurance Premium Finance
KFL provides annual insurance premium funding by paying the Insurer the annual premium and the

customer repays KFL by way of monthly instalments.

Service Support

KFL's services are provided through a flexible and accessible system. The Company constantly strives to
streamline and simplify its processes for credit application, credit authorisation, billing, remittance, and
customer service processing, to better serve clients.

KFL currently operates at Tappoo City Building in Suva, with Service Centres in Lautoka and Labasa.

Business can also be conducted by phone, online, via postal service or by mobile manager, reducing
the need for customers to visit KFL's offices.

Customers have seven-day access to customer service representatives, including after normal
business hours.
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Community
Engagement

During the year KFL provided a 4WD motor vehicle to Diabetes Fiji Incorporated (formerly known as
National Diabetes Foundation of Fiji), a Charitable Trust. This vehicle, a first for the Trust, allows them to:

Conduct home visits.
*  Provide diabetes awareness outreach to schools.

Distribute much needed medical supplies to patients all over Fiji, especially in the outskirts of main
cities and towns.

Provide monitoring of patient health care by conducting necessary blood and ketone tests only
available in major hospitals and referring cases for further management if necessary.

Conduct training for patients to be resilient and adaptive to changes such as pandemics and
disasters.
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KFL also provides two motor vehicles to the
Fiji Cancer Society to improve their reach to
patients, especially those in remote areas. The
motor vehicles are fully funded by KFL, for
ongoing maintenance, insurance and running
costs.

KFL assisted various sporting Associations
by participating in their Business House
Competitions. This not only promoted a
healthier work environment for our staff but
helped the Associations to achieve their goals.
Competitions included Outrigger Paddling,
Lawn Bowls, Volleyball and Netball.

We remain committed to supporting our local
communities.
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Our Products & Services

TERM DEPOSITS

We have among the best Term
Deposit rates in the country
since we started helping you
grow your wealth to make living
more comfortable and enjoyable.
This investment is also capital
guaranteed.

DEBT
CONSOLIDATION
LOANS

Finance all your existing
loans into one easy Kontiki
Loan, making life that much
easier for you.

®

CAR LOANS

We can help you access
your new or used
vehicle and workout

a repayment to suit
your budget, including
lending out for longer,
leaving you with more
cash in your pocket at
the end of the month.

EQUITY
RELEASE

This product allows
you to obtain a loan by
using the capital value
of your motor vehicle
as security, even if you
have an existing loan
on the vehicle we can
assess your application
with that in mind.

S

LOAN
PROTECTION
INSURANCE

We offer Loan
Protection Insurance
(LPI) which can
protect you in times
of involuntary
unemployment,
sickness, accident and
death. This is another
comprehensive service
we have to make sure
that you are looked
after properly.
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Board of Directors

Chairman

CF, MA, BA, FAICD

A Fiji citizen, Barry served as Governor of the
Reserve Bank of Fiji from May 2011 to May 2017
and prior to that as Deputy Governor from
October 2009. He has a career spanning just
over 40 years across all core areas of the Central
Bank including Economics/Research, Financial
Markets, Financial Institutions Supervision and
Currency and Corporate Services.

As Governor, he was a member of the
National Anti-Money Laundering Council,
National MSME Taskforce and Fiji Institute
of Bankers Council. He chaired several key
external and internal committees including
the  Macroeconomic  Policy Committee,
National Capital Markets Taskforce, National
Financial Inclusion Taskforce, National Secured
Transactions Taskforce, the RBF Board, and
various policy committees of the Reserve Bank
including Financial Systems Development,
Financial Institutions, Financial Markets,
Currency & Corporate Services and Economics.

Barry graduated with a Bachelor of Arts
(Economics/Administration) from the
University of the South Pacific and a Master of
Arts (Economics) from Simon Fraser University
in Vancouver, Canada. He is a Fellow of the
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

He currently serves as a Director with the Pacific
Catastrophe Risk Insurance Company, Tower
Insurance (Fiji) Ltd, South Pacific Insurance
Company (Fiji) Ltd and as a Director/Trustee of
the JP Bayly Trust.

Barry is an Independent Director of KFL.
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Director
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A Fiji citizen and Member of the
Order of Fiji, Daryl has worked in
executive, advisory and governance
roles over many years. He joined the
sugar industry in 1968 and served
as the Secretary of the Sugar
Board & Advisory Council, then as
Executive Vice Chairman. Other
roles in the industry include being
the first Industrial Commissioner of
the Sugar Industry Tribunal.

Daryl previously chaired the Capital
Markets Development Authority,
Kontiki Growth Fund, Suva Private
Hospital and Sugar Cane Growers
Fund Authority, and was Director
of Air Terminal Services, Telecom
Fiji, and Namale Plantation Resort.

Daryl is also an author, having
written several successful novels
as well as the Biography of Ratu
Sir Penaia Ganilau and was the
Hon. Consul for Federal Republic of
Germany for 15 years.

Daryl is an Independent Director of
KFL.

Director

BCom, Grad Dip App Fin &
Inv., CFA

A Fiji citizen, Griffon is the Managing
Director of Kontiki Capital. He was
previously the Manager Public
Awareness & Investor Education at
the Capital Markets Development
Authority and an economist at the
Ministry of Finance where he served
with the Economic Policy Analysis
Unit and the Financial Management
Reform Project. He is licensed by
the RBF as an Investment Adviser
Representative and serves on
several other boards.

Past directorships include for the
South Pacific Stock Exchange and
Pleass Global. Criffon graduated
with a Bachelor of Commerce
from the University of Auckland,
New Zealand and completed the
GCraduate Diploma in Applied

Finance & Investment through the
Securities Institute of Australia
(now the Financial Services Institute
of Australasia). He is a member of
the CFA Institute and earned the
CFA Charter in 2005.

Director

MAICD

Glen is a Vanuatu citizen. He is the
Managing Partner of the specialist
corporate advisory firm, Pacific Advisory.
He is a Licensed Securities Dealer and
holds a CSP Licence from the Vanuatu
Financial Securities Commission.

Glen has an extensive background in
Climate Finance, Digital Transformation,
Policy Development, Tourism and
Agriculture with practical hands-on
knowledge of the intricacies of doing
business in a Pacific context. He offers
a broad range of advisory and strategic
services to Governments, Financial
Institutions, Corporates, Regional
Agencies, and Institutional Investors.

Clen has resided permanently in
Vanuatu for 16 years and sits on
numerous private and public boards
and committees including serving as
the current Chairperson of the Vanuatu
Business Resilience Council. Glen's
passion is driving development in the
South Pacific through direct investment
in sustainable industries.

Director
MCom, BBus, DipBank

Litia is a Fiji citizen, with over 18 years
of experience in the banking and
finance sector in Fiji.

Since leaving the banking industry, she
has been holding advisory roles with
various non-profitable organisations
both in Fiji and the Region whilst
also managing family inter-related
businesses.

Litia graduated with a Master of
Commerce (Banking & Finance) from
the University of Sydney and Bachelor
of Business (Banking & Finance) from
the University of South Australia. She
also completed a Diploma in Banking
from the University of the South Pacific
in Fiji.

Litia is an Independent Director of KFL.

Director

BCom, CA (ANZ), CA (Fiji),
MAICD

A Fiji citizen, Chirk is a graduate of
the University of Auckland. His career
spanned 37 vyears in the Chartered
Accountancy profession commencing in
PricewaterhouseCooper’'s predecessor
firm of Coopers & Lybrand in Auckland,
New Zealand before transferring to
Fiji. He retired as a Senior Partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in December
2015.

Over his career he has overseen
liguidations, receiverships, IPO's,
business start-ups and insurance
claims, while providing consultancy
advice on mergers & acquisitions to
a broad cross section of clients in the
retail, manufacturing, and financial
sectors of the economy. He was one
of the initial representatives licensed
by the RBF as an Investment Adviser.
Chirk’s other areas of expertise is in
audit and taxation.

Chirk is an Independent Director of KFL.
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Senior
Management
Team

Gregory Cathcart

Greg is a Fiji citizen with over 40 years of experience as a finance executive in several geographies
including Australia, New Zealand, Fiji, Papua New Guinea, Indonesia, Kuwait, and Bahrain. He has a record
of successfully delivering performance outcomes, onboarding and managing large multi-partnered deals,
launching and managing retail deposit and loan products, and negotiating and managing wholesale
funding facilities.

Greg has previously held senior and executive positions with listed entities and major corporates abroad.
These include Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of Pacific Retail Finance Group (division of
NZX-listed PRG, later sold to NYSE-listed GE), Head of Business Development & Support at Australian
Guarantee Corporation (division of ASX-listed Westpac) and Group Credit Manager at NZX-listed Fisher
& Paykel Finance (later sold to ASX-listed FXL).

Greg has a Post Graduate Diploma in Business with a Finance major from the Business School at
Auckland University, New Zealand and is a Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia
(FINSIA). He was elected Chairman of the Finance Companies Association, the professional industry
body for Licensed Credit Institutions in Fiji, in 2016 and again in 2020. He also served previously on the
Accounting, Law and Finance Committee at Unitec in Auckland, New Zealand for seven years until 2006.

%Kl:m!'[ll(l
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David Oliver

David is a Fiji citizen with over 30 years of investment banking experience in New Zealand, Fiji, and the
Pacific. He is highly experienced in financial risk management, evaluating business feasibility, acquisition,
divestiture, valuation, due diligence and financing transactions.

David was previously Manager, Corporate Advisory at Macquarie Bank in New Zealand. Prior to that,
he managed the Department of Public Enterprises in Fiji, where he oversaw the development and
implementation of Fiji's public enterprise reform programme. He has extensive experience as a business
and Economic Analyst, having previously filled this role at Telecom New Zealand, New Zealand Treasury
and Shell Oil (N2).

David holds a Bachelor of Arts (First Class Honours) in Economics from Victoria University of Wellington,
New Zealand and is a Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia (FINSIA), having completed
the Graduate Diploma in Applied Finance & Investment. He is a member of the Global Association of
Risk Professionals (GARP) and is certified with the Financial Risk Manager (FRM) designation. He is
licensed by the RBF as an Investment Adviser and Broker Dealer Representative.

Phillip Lacey

A New Zealand citizen, Phillip has over 30 years of financial services experience, specialising in
relationship-managed sales in direct and intermediary channels. He was previously General Manager of
NYSE-listed GE Capital's NZ Mortgage business and ran credit, collections and loss-recoveries functions
for Pacific Retail Finance. He also served as Head of Collections for AGC Finance (owned by Westpac
Bank) managing a human resource of 60 employees.

Phillip assisted with establishing Simply Insurance for Pacific Retail Finance, which achieved a maiden
NPBT of NZ$8.9m in its first full year of operations. At PRF, he conducted risk analysis of Direct Channel
products and processes and detailed process approval of all distribution collateral including TV
campaigns, radio, direct mail and print media. He also ran and owned a three-branch Wizard Home
Loans franchise, writing loans of NZ$96m and won Wizard Home Loans performance awards in multiple
years.
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Audit & Risk ' | | & Remuneration &
Sub-Committee g % Nominations Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board of Directors in The RENOM Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibility

fulfilling its responsibility to ensure that Management achieves for the design and operation of KFL's remuneration system. The Committee

Organisational objectives by providing independent oversight of KFL's ‘ also reviews the nomination, selection and remuneration of the CEO, Senior

internal controls and operations. Management, Heads of Control Functions and any material risk takers of KFL.

Responsibilities of the Committee include but are not limited to: Responsibilities of the Committee include but are not limited to:

*  Providing oversight of the Internal and External Auditors. + Assisting the Boardindischargingits responsibility for the design and operation of KFL's remuneration
system.

+  Reviewing Internal & External Audit Reports and Regulatory Onsite Reports.
+  Making recommendations to the Board in respect of the remuneration package for KFL's Senior

Ensuring Senior Management addresses control weaknesses and other compliance issues identified
° 9 P Management, Heads of Control Functions, and any other material risk takers.

by Auditors, in a timely manner.
Reviewing Risk Management strategies, Risk Appetite and Risk Tolerance levels of KFL. . Id.entn‘ymg anq recommending to the Board, any |nd|V|duaLs suitably qualified to become Board
Directors, Senior Management, Heads of Control Functions and Company Secretary.
Reviewing and assessing the adequacy of KFL's Risk Management Framework and Policies and the ] ) ) ) )
. . . +  Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

extent to which these are operating effectively.
Ensuring the appropriate infrastructure, resources and systems are in place for Risk Management. +  Undertaking succession planning for the Board, Senior Management and Heads of Control Functions.

Reviewing key Risk Management and Compliance Reports. *  Regularly reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of the Board.

The Committee led by a Chair (other than the Board Chair) consists of four Directors who meet twice a

The Committee consists of three Directors and is chaired by an Independent Director. The Committee
year and more frequently as needed.

meet quarterly and more frequently if needed. Other Directors are invited to sit in during meetings if
they wish. Atevery Board Meeting, the Committee Chairman provides a brief update to the Board onthe Committee’s
Meetings, matters requiring the attention of the Board, and any recommendations requiring Board

At each Board Meeting, the Committee Chairman provides a brief update to the Board on the Committee’s approval
roval.

meetings, matters requiring the attention of the Board, and any recommendations requiring Board
approval.
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Corporate
Governance
Statement

Dy ESTABLISH CLEAR RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BOARD OVERSIGHT

The Company’'s Corporate Governance Policy clearly defines the role of the Board and its Committees,
namely the Audit & Risk Committee (ARC), the Remuneration and Nominations Committee (RENOM)
and the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO). The Board has overall responsibility for the Company,
including approving and overseeing the implementation of its business objectives, risk strategy, financial
soundness, corporate governance, and corporate values. The Board is also guided by the Board Charter
which includes, amongst other things:

A commitment to ensure compliance of the Company’s legal and regulatory obligations to respective
stakeholders.

+  Theroles, functions, obligations, rights, responsibilities, and powers of the Board.

+  The Policies, practices and Procedures the Board must follow in performing its duties, functions, and
responsibilities;

A commitment to review, ratify, monitor and implement systems of Risk Management and internal
control, as well as corporate governance.

sy, KOMTIKI

CONSTITUTE AN EFFECTIVE BOARD

Candidates for Directorship may be nominated by Shareholders in an Annual General Meeting or
appointed by the Board on a temporary basis. Directors appointed by the Board may only hold the
position until the next Annual General Meeting.

The Board Charter sets the guidelines that Directors should meet. In particular:

Proposed Board members must meet the fit and proper criteria as defined by the RBF Banking
Supervision Policy Statement No 10: Fit and Proper Requirements for Licensed Financial Institutions
in Fiji.

Directors should have a clear understanding of their role in corporate governance and be able to
exercise sound and objective judgement about the affairs of KFL.

The Board should possess, both as individuals and collectively, appropriate experience,
competencies, and personal qualities, including professionalism and personal integrity.

The Board should have an adequate mix of core competencies in finance, accounting, financial
services, business or management experience, industry knowledge, legal, strategic planning, and
Risk Management.

The Board Charter also requires that the Company must have Policies and practices for the selection,
approval, renewal and succession of directors. New directors must also be provided sufficient time to
familiarise themselves with KFL's business and risk profile, Risk Management, governance practices
and internal controls. In practice, this includes the provision of an information pack containing all
relevant documents upon appointment and briefings by Senior Management.

The Board reviews and reassesses the adequacy of the Board Charter regularly.

REMUNERATION

AEZ%TIL?T?:ESEK & NOMINATIONS
COMMITTEE
A B
Barry Whiteside 6 6 - 2 2
Glen Craig 6 6 3 2 - -
Griffon Emose 6 6 2 2 2 2
Litia Niumataiwalu 6 6 5 5 2 2
Daryl Tarte 6 5 2 2 2 2
Chirk Yam 6 6 5 5 - -
Cecil Browne 5 4 5 1 i i

(Resigned on 12/5/22)

Column A: number of meetings held while a member

Column B: number of meetings attended
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APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Do«

The Corporate Governance Policy clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of the CEOQ. The CEO's
contract of employment also details the duties, functions, and responsibilities of the position.

The Board is responsible for selecting the CEO and having in place an appropriate succession plan. The
Board also provides oversight of the CEQO, in particular:

Monitoring to ensure the CEO's actions are consistent with the strategy and Policies approved by
the Board.

+  Setting formal performance standards consistent with the long-term objectives, strategy and
financial soundness of the Company, and monitoring performance against these standards.

+  Ensuringthat the CEO’s knowledge and expertise remain appropriate given the nature of the business
and the institution’s risk profile.

* The Board ensures that the Company’s organisational structure facilitates effective decision making
and good governance.

X X

Xr

APPOINTMENT OF BOARD AND COMPANY SECRETARY

The Shareholders are responsible for selecting the Board. The Board is responsible for appointing a
competent Company Secretary who is the administrative link between the Board and Management.
The Company Secretary also monitors statutory requirements and Board Policies and Procedures and
ensures that they are followed in a timely manner.

L

TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

The Company has a policy of informing Shareholders promptly of any events that might significantly
affect the value of the Company. This is a requirement under the SPX Listing Rules, which KFL is required
to follow as a listed Company.

In addition, Annual Reports are provided to Shareholders and Annual General Meetings are held to

provide Shareholders the opportunity to have their queries answered and be updated on the Company’s
performance and plans.

The Company also welcomes contact with Shareholders at any time should they have pressing concerns
or queries.

6\

< > PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION-MAKING

The Corporate Governance Policy is designed to promote sound Corporate Governance Practices
within KFL. The Policy promotes principles of transparency, accountability, responsibility, and relevant
disclosure. It also emphasises the separate responsibilities of Directors and Senior Management and has
been written considering all relevant legislative and regulatory requirements.

Other Policies and Procedures have been put in place to cascade the core Corporate Governance
Principles contained in the Policy down to all aspects of the Company's operations.

sy, KOMTIKI
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U REGISTER OF INTERESTS

The Corporate Governance Policy sets out principles governing conflicts of interest of employees. In
particular, employees are required to declare any position or interest that could lead to a conflict, as well
as communicate any potential conflicts of interest to the CEO for proper management of the conflict.

Similarly, the Board Charter sets out principles governing conflicts of interest for Directors. The minutes
of Board meetings reflect any declarations of conflicts of interest and how the conflict was managed. A
Register of Interest’s for Directors is also maintained.

N,

% RESPECT RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

All Shareholders queries may be directed to the Company Secretary who is responsible for replying to
and addressing them. Aside from attendance at the AGM, Shareholders can submit written questions for
the AGM via the Company Secretary. KFL also has a website which is regularly updated with significant
events that may be of interest to Shareholders.

Q ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Company has an External Auditor to serve as an Independent Evaluator of the Company’s financial
reporting. This function is supported by an Internal Audit function involving an independent party.

The Company has an Audit & Risk Committee in place that meets quarterly, or more often as needs
dictate. The committee, amongst other things, is tasked with overseeing the external and internal audit
functions.

° RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

The Company has a comprehensive Risk Management framework of Policies and Procedures. The Audit
& Risk Committee oversees the risk function.

sy, KONTIKI
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Declaration

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
Independent Audit Report

Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Equity

Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to and Forming Part of the
Financial Statements
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary
DIRECTORS REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

DIRECTORS REPORT

In accordance with a resciuticn of the Board, the Direclors present their report on tha entities consisting of Konlikl Finance Limited ("tha
Company”} and its Subsidiary (collectively "the Group"} as at 30 June 2022,

The historical financial Information included in this Directors Report has bean extracted from the audited Financial Statements accompanying
this Direciors Repaort,

Information in this Directors Repor is provided 1o enable shareholders 1o make an informed assassment of the operations, financial position.
performance and other aspects of the Company and the Group, and whether the Company and the Group are frading as a going concem,

Principal Activitias

The principal aclivities of the Company during the year were that of receiving deposils and extending of credit and refated senvices. There was
no significant changs in the nature of these activities dunng the financial yaar.

The Company has a Subsidiary Company incorporatad in Vanuatu, Platinum Insurance Limited, The principal activity of tha Subsidiary i= to act
as a caplive insurer underwriting loan protection insurance for the Company, Kontiki Finance Limited, based in 1he Republic of Fiji,

The Company was fisted on the Soulh Pacific Stock Exchange on 4 July 2018.

Review and Results of Operations

The operating Group profit for the year was 57,216 936 (2021: 54,267 481) alter allowing for group meome tax expense of 3661826 (2021:
3330,248), The operating profit of the Company for the year was 56,184 329 (2021, 53.867,736) alter taking into account an income fax expense
of $661,826 (2021: £330,948),

Our Values

The core values of our business ara:
- Professionalism
- Integrity
- Respect
- Ethics
- Excellance

Qur Strategy

Qur siralegy is focused on driving shareholder value by providing innovative, flexible and accessible finance solutions to the consumer and small
and medium enterprise segments of the market. The Group provides this through a highly expedenced management team leveraging intellectusl
property and business intefligence proven by tham in other markets.

Qur Priorities This Year

Cur key priorties this year were to manage the ‘tail end’ of the Covid pandemic economy and its effect on our business whilst also preparing for
the rapid uplift in econamic activity experiencad later in the yaar following the retum of inbound tourism from Decamber 151 This was achiaved
and we axpect tho ecanomy to continue 1o improve nexd year also.

Koy Stalistics

Key stalistics as at 30 June 2022 Group_ Company|
Tatal number of employess 158 158
Total azsets $241,744,846 5229,880 GRB
Total operating income £41.628 657 538.852.000
Met profit after tax 57,216,936, $6,184,320
Eamings per share 50.08)

The Future

The devedopment of new products and markels, and enhancements lo existing products will continue (o allow the Group to sell bundlied
products, win new businass and'or raduce risk,
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary
DIRECTORS REPORT continuad
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

K
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Bad and Doubtful Debts

Prior o the completion of the Group's and the Company's financial statements, the Direclors took reasonable steps [o asceriain (hat action had
been taken in retation to writing off of bad debts and the making of provision for expected credil losses. In the opinion of Direclors, adeguate
provision has been made for expected credit losses,

As at the date of this report, the Group and the Camipany are not aware of any circumstances, which would render the amount written off for bad
debis or the provision for expected credit losses in the Group and the Company, inadeguate to any substantial extent.

Non-Current Assets

Prior io the completion of the firancial statements of the Group and the Company, the Direclors tock reasonable sleps o ascertain whether any
non-current assels were unikely to realisa in the ordinary course of business their values as shown in the accounting recosds of the Group and
the Company. Where necessary these assets have been written down or adequate provision has been made to bring the values of such assels
to an amount that they might be expecled fo realise.

As al the date of this repont, the Direclors are nol aware of any circumstances, which would render the values-aftributed to non-current assets in
the Group's and the Company’s inancial statemeants misieading

Significant event - Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Com

The coronavirus diseasa (COVID-19) oulbreak has developed rapidly, bringing a significant health impact globally. Measures taken to coniain
the virus have had a significant impact on global markets and economic activity. Fiji has also felt the impact, with business disruption and levels
of activity reducing in several economic sectors. The Group has remained operational since this declaraticn and continues to engage in its
principal activities,

On 25 Apel 2021, in response to the COVID-192 pandemic, the Government announced a number of measures including lockdown of certain
containment areas within Viti Levu. Under the lockdown restrictions, all nonessential businesses were required 1o clpse unless the workplace
was deemed part of a permitted indusiry as sat out by the Government. The introduction of these restrictions has not had a material effect on the
Company's financial statements at 30 June 2022,

In July 2021 the Fijlan Government ramped up s vaccination drive wilth a national targel of 80 percent of the tasgel population to be fully
vaccinated by 31 Oclober 2021. The Govemment was able lo attain 90 percent in November and as a resull the current containment measures
with restrictions are easing as the fully vaccinated percentage increases. The duration and extent of the pandemic and related financial, social
and public health impacts of the COVID-18 pandemic are uncartain,

The Directors and management beleve the Group has sufficient financial resources al this time (o be able to successhily manage their business
risks within the current uncerain economic cullook arising from the COVID-12 outbreak.

Other Circumstances

Ag at the date of this report:

i  no chasge on the assels of the Group and the Company has been given since the end of the financal year to secure the liabiliies of any
other person;

(¥} no contimgent lEabilities have arsen since the and of the financial year for which the Group and the Company could become liable; and

8} no contingent liabilities or other liabilities of the Group and the Company has become or is likely lo become enforceable within the period
of twelve months after the and of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will ar may substantially atfect tha ability of the
Group and the Company to meet ils obligalions as and when they fall due.

As at the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen, not otherwise deafl with In this report or the
Group and the Company's financial statements, which would make adherence fo the existing method of valuation of assels or liabilities
misleading or inappropriate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Direclor has received or bacome entifled o receive a benafit (other than those ncluded in the
aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made
by the Group and the Company with tha Director or wilth a firm of which he or she is a Director, of with a comparny in which he or she has a
substantial financial interost.
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary

DIRECTORS REPORT continued DIRECTORS REPORT continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Basis of Accounting

Tha Deeciors ballave that the basis of the proparation of ihe financial statemants s appropeate and tha Group and the Company will ba able to confinue is Auditor Indepandance

operation for al least twelve months from the date of this repor. Accordingly the Directars balieves the classffication and camying amouniz of assais and

liatilithes as staled in these financial stabomonts are appropriate. The Direclors have cbiained an independence declaration from the Group's auditor, Ernsl & Young. A copy of the audilor's Independence
All relsted party lranzactions have been adequataly recordad in tha books of the Grown and the Company. declaration is set oul in the Audilor’s Indspendence Declaralion lo the Direclors of Konliki Finance Limiled on page 7.

Dividands

Skgned for and on behall of the Beard of Direclors and in accordance with a resolution of the Direclors.,

Dated this 20 Bay of A\vn%'\' 2022

A final dividend of 1.5 cents per shora, lotaling to 51,391,297, was declared from profits for the 2021 financial yias and paid in 2022 financial year, In addition,
an interim dividend of 1.5 cents per share, totalng 1o $1.393,156, was declared and paid during the 2022 financial year.

Significant changes in the state of affairg

Thare wore no significant changes in the state of affaxs of the Group and the Company during the yoar ended 30 June 2022,
E: i r d of the fin

Mo mattar or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affacted or may sqnificantly alffect the operations of the Groop s garmmin g st it inise s e
and the Compary, the resulls of those operations, or the state of alfairs of the Group and he Company In fulure inancial periods 4

Detalls of Directors and Executives
This Directors of the Company during the financlal padod and up to the date of thes repart wers:

Barry Whitesido {Chairman)
Draryl Tarta Chal

Gian Craig

Griffon Emose

Litia MNiumataiwabh

Chirk, Y'am

Cecil Browne (resigned on 12 May 2022}

Details of Directors” direct and indirect shareholdings in the Company as &l 30 June 2022 ane shown in the lable below:

Hama Position Group Company
Wheesida Chairman 257 889 257 BB
Daryl Tans Direcior 352 582 352,582
Glen Craig Directior 541,730 4,541,730
Griflon Emosa Direscaor 1.718.110 1,718,110
Cecil Browne Dirgeior 250,000 250,000
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary
DIRECTORS DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

DIRECTORS DECLARATION
This Directors Declaration is required by the Companies Act 2015,
The Direclors of Kontiki Finance Limited (the Company"} and is Subsidiary (collectively “the Group") have made a resolulion that declaned:
@) n the Direclors opinion, the financial statements and notes of the Company and the Group for the fnancial year ended 30 June 2022;

i) give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2022 and the performance of the
Company and of the Group for (he year ended 30 June 2022;

i} have been made out in accordance with the Companies Act 2015;

B) they have recaived declarations as required by Section 385 of the Companies Act 2015 and

¢} atthe date of this declaration, in the Direclors opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the Group will
be able to pay its debts as and when thay become due and payable,

Signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors and in accordanca with a resolulion of the Directors.,

Dated ﬂﬁs?iﬁ%’ay of Auﬂu&\- 2022.

%thlg'[lm
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of Kontiki Finance Limited

As lead auditor Tor the audit of Kontiki Finance Limited ("the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary
(collectively "the Group”) far the financial year ended 30 June 20272, | declare to the best of my
knowledge and belief, there have been;

al no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Companies Act 2015 in
relation to the audit; and

k) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit,

This declaration is in respect of Kontiki Finapce Limited and the entities it controlled during the
financial year.

Crwsta

Ernst & Young
Suva, Fiji

.--"'""f
Sikeli Tuinamuana
Partner

Level 7, Pacific House
1 Butt Street

Suva, Fiji

30 August 2022
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Independent Audit Report
To the members of Kontiki Finance Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kontiki Finance Limited ("the Company”) and its
subsidiary company (collectively “the Group”), which comprise the statement of financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2022, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2022 and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards
("IFRS™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISA"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics
for Professional Accourttants (IE5BA Code), and we have Tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other than the provision of assurance services in our capacity as auditor, we have no relationship
with, or interest in, the Company or the Group. Partrers and employees of our firm deal with the
Company or the Group on normal terms within the ordinary course of trading activities of the business
of the Company or the Group.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For the matters below, our description on
hew our audit addressed the matters is pravided in that context,

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibifities for the Audit of the
Financial Statementssection of our report, including in refation to the key audit matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
af material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures parformed to address the matters below, provide the basis fiar our audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements.

A mgimies finn of Ermst & Young Global Limited
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Key Audit Matters continued

As deseribed 0 Mot 2.3 (4) Imparment of hrancial
assels, Note 7 Receivable from customers and Note 25
Firancial risk managament. the provisions for expected
credit losses- ("ECL™) are determined under application
of IFRS 8 Financial Instruments

This is a key audit matter s significant judgement is
involved to determine the expected credit losses,

Kery areqs of judgement inchaded;

~ the |nterprotation of the reguirements to determing
impairment under appiication of IFR5 2, which ara
reflected in the Company and the Group's expectod
cradit loss model:

= the dentification of exposures with a sigmificant
datericration in credit guality;

~  assumptons used in the expecied credit loss modal
such s the financial condition of the counterparty,
expected future cash flows and forward-looking
macroeconomic.  factoes leg,  forecast gross
domiestic product growth} as disclosed in Note 25
Financial risk management and Mote 2.3 (d)
Impairment of financial assets; and

= the need tooapply additional overlays 1o reflect
current or future extemal factors thar are nob
otherwise appropriately captured by the expected
credit loss mode]

Provision for credit loss (Key Audit Matter for the Company and Group)

o st s s oy i i

In abtaning sufficent appropriate audi evidence wa:
+ Assensed the modelling rechiniques and mathodology

used agalnst the requirements - of IFRS 2 Financial
INSErLNTHS

Assessed and tested the design and  operating

effectiveness of the controls over the:

— gfaty wsed 1o determing the pravesion for tredit
loss, Including framsactional data captured at laan
origingtion, ongoing intemal  credit | quality
assessmants, storage of data in data warehouses
and interfaces to the expected credit loss model:
and

- gxpected credit loss model, including model boild
and approval, ongoing  moniterngfelidation,
model governance and mathematical accuracy.

Assessed key modelling assumplions with & focus on

the:

- financial copdiian of the counterparties and
expected futdre cashflows: and

— =ensitivity of the collective pravisions 1o changes
i madaelling assumgptions,

Examined @ sample of éxposures and performed

procodures to evaluate the:

- timely  identification of exposures with a
significant deterioration in credit quality; and

- expected  loss  caleulation for  collective
provisioning,

Used indusery knowledge and informarion published by
regulgtors and other bodies, for éxample recently
published gross domistic product growth data, to
assess the impact of market and regulatory changes
on the ECL models assumplions. In doing so we
assessed whether 1he probability weighting assignead
to customers provided with reliel measures, and so
when Have an expacted "Significant Increase in Credit
Rizk” and the resultant provisioning calculated in
relation o these risks was in fine with the
requirements of IFRS 8.

Invalved [T specialists in areas that required specific
expertise tincluding data reliability and the expected
cradit loss model),

Assessed whether the financial statement disclosures
appropriately reflect the Company and the Group's
exposure to-credit risk:

& rmgebios Finm & Ermt & Yeding Glebal Lim#eg
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Key Audit Matters continued Other Information

Estimation of insurance liabilities (Key Audit Matter for the Group only) The Directors and management are responsible for other information. The other information

In-obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence we:

The subsichary company has significant insurance
liabilities, including a provision for reported claims by
policyhakiers, an incurred but not reported claims
reserve (IBNR") and an unearned premium reserve
totalling to 58,417,364 as of 30 June 2022,

The provision for reported claims By policyholders
comprises  the total valye of individual outstanding
claims estimated by internal or external loss adjusters
when a claim has been initiated. These estimates are
reassessed during the various stages of the claim
processing cyele and are revised based on changes |n
specific circumstances pertaining Lo each claim,

The IBNR reprezents -an estimate of the hability for
claim-generating @vants that have taken place during
the year but have not yet been reported to the
subsidiary company as of 30 June 2022, IBNR is
recorded at  the reporting  date based on  the
computations: performed by an external  acluary
appointed by management, after considering historical

claim trends, empirical data and current assumptons

that may include a margin for adverse deviations.

Specific to the current environment, COVIDS has
caused significant disruption across Fiji and Vanuatu.
The assesstnent of the impact of COVID-19 en the
estimation of insurance liabilities requires significant
Judgement as claims activity through the period may not
be representative of future claims activity and greater
judgement s required when considering the use of
recent experience 10 determine cutstanding claims
liabilities.

Due to the magnitude of the balances and the increased
estimation uncertainty and subjectivity involved in the
assessment of these reservies. in particular the ultimate
total settlement amount of the insurance contract
liabilities, we consider this (o bea key audit matter;

The Group's disclosures regarding policyholder liabilities

are included i MNowes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements

A enertiad finm of St & Young Global Cimiled

Tested controls over the imbation, review  and
approval of the claim process across the different ines
of business Including the claim settlement process,

Evaluated the - provision For claims. reported by
pilicyholders by considering the loss reports, intermal
policies and the assumptions made by management

Evaluated the Group's assessment of the impact of
COVID-1% on insurance Habilities.

Evaluated the competence, objectivity and expertiss
of the actuary appointed by management.

Considerad the data provided by the Group to the
external actuary on which the actuarial vatuation was
based and assessed the completeness and accuracy of
this data. '

Involved our internal actusrial speialist to verily the
computation and evalsate the methodology and
assumptions used by the actuary by comparison to
generally accepted industry practices,

- Assessed the adeguacy and completensss of the

disclosures n relation to  policyholder  liabilites
considering  the reguirements: of the relevant
accounting standards,

comprises the information in the Company and the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 30
June 2022 but does not include the financial statements and the Auditor's Report thereon.

Our opinion an the financial statemeants does not cover the other infarmation and we do not exprass
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In eannection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
informaticn identified above and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is matenally
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated, If, based upon the work performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and management for the Financial Statements

The Directors and management are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with IFRS and for such internal control as the Directors and
management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors and management are responsible for assessing the Company's and the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors and management either intend to liquidate
the Company and the Greup to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors and management are responsible for overseeing the Company's and the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstaternent can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements,

A mgimies finn of Ermst & Young Global Limited
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements continued

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud i1s higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and the Group's internal controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors and management,

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ and management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
eists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company's and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Il we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we arerequired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, Howewver, future
events or conditions may cause the Company and the Group to cease to continue as a going
concerm.

»  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves Tair presentation,

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express-an opinion on the linancial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinien.

We communicate with the Directors and management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide the Directors and management with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safoguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors and management, we determine those mattars
that were of moest significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's repart unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extramely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

A mgimies finn of Ermst & Young Global Limited
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of
the Banking Act 1995 and the Companies Act 20175 in all material respects, and:

i we have bean given all information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of
the audit; and

(i) the Company and the Group has kept financial records sufficient to enable the financial
statements to be prepared and audited.

Enrta

Ernst & Young
Suva, Fiji

e

Sikeli Tuinamuana
Partner

Level 7, Pacific House
1 Butt Street

Suva, Fiji

30 August 2022
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUME 2022 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022
Group Company Group Company
Motes 2022 2021 2022 2021 Mote 2022 2021 2022 2021
5 -3 5 5 $ - 5 -
Revenue
Issued capital
Interest revenus calculated using the effective interest method an 36935314 43.641 987 38 745018 43437931 Balance at the baginning of the year 14,614,121 13,777,748 14,614,121 13,777,748
Issue of share capital 21 256,505 B36.373 256,505 836,373
Interest expense calculated using the effective inferest methad 4.1 (8,222177)  (11,755.735) (9.222477)  (11,755,735) Balance al the end of the year 14,870,626 14,614,121 14,870,626 14,614,121
Other intarest and similar expense 4.2 [1,498.479) (1,105 667) {1,486, 108) {1,1056.667) Ratained sarnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 14,039,305 14,376,374 11,662,353 12,418,167
Mt inlerest incomie 26,214 658 30,780,585 26,036,735 30,576.529 Mt profit for the year 7,.216.936 4,267 481 6,184,329 3,887 736
Dividands 21 {2,784 453) {4,604 550) (2. 784, 453) {4,604 550)
Fae income az 1,023,587 918,406 1.023,587 918,406 Balance at the end of the year 18,471,788 14,038,305 15,082 229 11,682 353
Premium incoma 16 2,151,398 2353458 - - Total equity 33 342 414 28 B53 428 29 852 BES 26,296 474
Mon-trading ncome a3 1,518,357 1,177,466 1,083,395 1.078.295
Met trading revenue 30,909,001 35,228,913 28143717 32.573.230

Less: Expanses

Movements in expecled credit loss 7 {6,586,085) [14.928.717) {6,586,086) {14,920,717)
Parsannel expenses 4.3 {B,280,288) {7,589.965) (8,280,288) {7,589,965)
Dapreciation of plant and equipment and right-of-use assets {2,112.938) (2,037,5449) {2.,082,308) {2,037 249}
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 (215,209} (261.874) {215,208) (261.874)
Other operating axpenses 4.4 {5.835.722) (5.811.979) {4,123 673) {3.555.041)
Talal operating expenses [23,030.239) _ (I0.631A404) (21,007 562)  (28.374.546)
Operating profit before tax 7878762 4,598 429 6,846,155 4,198 684

Incomsa tax expense 5 (661,6826) {330,948) (B61,826) (330,948)
Het profit after lax 7,216,935 4,267 481 6.184,329 3,887,736

Other comprehansive incomea - -

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 7,216,936 4, 267 481 6,184,329 3,867,736

Earnings per sharg 22 $0.08 %0.05

The accompanying nobes form an infegral part of this Statement of Changes in Equily.
The accompanying nofes forrm an infegral part of this Statement of Prafil or Loss and Other Comprehiensive Income,

KONTIK] KONTIK]
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KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Group Company
Motes 2022 2021 2022 2021
5 § 5 5
ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents B 26,078,924 42 848,575 25,838 768 41,657,026
Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss -] 5,022,541 5,803,448 = -
Dbl financial assets al amortised cost =3 69,028 000 75.273.000 63,738,000 59,938,000
Recevatle from customers 7 128 928 8859 139,900,325 128,926,381 139,876,591
Prepayments and other assets 10 3,586 853 6,324,403 3,455,708 6,835,824
Investment In subsidiary 1 - - 215,000 215000
Property, plant and aquipmeni 13 3,067 429 1,784,778 3,067 429 1,784,776
Right-of-use asseis 19 3,564 141 5.508,163 3,170,323 5,598,163
Intanglble assats 14 386,104 470,332 386,104 470,332
Current tax assel 31,869 - 31,869 -
Defarred tax assal 5 1,050,056 1.803,288 1,050,098 1,803.208
Total assels 241,744 B4E 279,587,320 229 8B0,688 268,163,010
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Due to customers 12 174,166,341 213322133 174,166,341 213,322,133
Trade and olher payables 15 1,796,985 2.239.928 2147 815 2175673
Currant tax Hability - 338472 - 339472
Employee benafil [kability 18 178,189 126,916 178,189 126.916
Unearned premium 16 7,112,609 7,683,976 - -
Lease liabilitias 19 3,843,553 5.802 342 3435488 5802342
Dbl issued and other bormowed funds 20 20,000.000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Frovisions 17 1,304,755 1.319.127 - -
Total llabilities 208,402 432 250,933,854 199,927,833 241,866,536
SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Issued capital 21 14,870,626 14,614,121 14,870,626 14,614,121
Retalned samings 18,471,788 14,039,305 15,082,229 11,682,353
Total equity 33342414 28 653,426 29,952 855 26,296,474
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 241,744 846 279,587,320 229,880,688 268,163,010
The accompanying nofes form an infegral part af this Stafemenl of Financial Posilion.
KONTIKI

KONTIKI FINANCE LIMITED and its Subsidiary
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Maote

Operating activities

Intarast incoma received

Interest axpanse paid

Interest paid on leass liabilities

MNan Interest income recelved

Premium incoma recaived

Payments to suppliers and emplovees
Paymaenls for ciaims

Met cusiomer loans repayments including granted
Met lerm deposits (redeemed)received
Income taxes paid

Net cash flows (used in)from Operating Activities

Investing activilies

Acquisition of property plant and equipmeant

Proceeds from sale of plant and equipmant

Acquisition of intangible assat

Disposals of debt financal instrurmenis

Met procesds from sale/acquisition of financial assel through profit or loss
Dividends recelved

Proceeds from issuance of corporate bond

HNet cash flows from Investing Activities

Financing activities

Capital contribution from shareholders
Dividends paid

Lease payments

Net cash used in Financing Activities

Met (decreaselincrease n cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash aquivalents at 30 June &

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
Inflows! Inflows! Inflows! Inflows/(
[Outflows) {Outflows) [(Outflows) (Outflows)

5 -3 & 5
35,494,373 42085917 35,304,077 41,861,862
(10,587,177} (12,488 662) {10,597 177) (12,488,664)

{123 479) {371,738) {111,108} (371,738)
3,160,288 1,503,087 3,160,288 1,503,087
1279333 883,736 3 5

(23,867.110) [21.699.982) |22.877.823) {21,999,356)

[1,458.012) {1.926,010) E .

18,753,408 6.881,491 18,753 408 8,881,490
(29,155, 792) 287,958 39,155,792} 287 958
{291.057) (530,900) {291,057} (630,900)
(16,805,225) 14,603,895 (15,815,182} 15,042,739

(2,141,423} {75.586) (2,141,423} (75,586)
20,249 147 452 20,249 147452

(130.881) (B3.614) {130,981} (83.614)

B,245.000 1,780,000 6,200,000 1,250,000
116,757 1.535,760 - .
89,944 67,513 700,000
- 17,400,000 - 17,400,000
4,199,594 20,751,534 3,947 845 19,338,252
258,505 B36,373 296,505 836,373
{2,784 .453) (4,604, 550) {2,784 453} {4,604 550)
{1,437,074) (1.183.188) (1,421,873} {1,183,188)
{3.965.022) {4.951,365) (3,940,921} {4,951,365)
{16,570.651) 30,404,084 {15,817 ,258) 20,429,626
42 B49,575 12.245511 21,657,026 12,327,400
26,078 024 42 B49 575 25,835,768 41,657,028

The accompanying nofes form an integral part of this Statement of Cash Flows.
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R TE INFORMATION 2. 1S OF PREPARATION OF FINANCI A NT.
The Financial Stalements of Kontiki Finance Limited {"the Company”) and its Subsidiary (colleclively "the Group”) for the year ended 30 Going congarn
June 2022 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resclution of the Directors an 30ih August 2022, The enlily owners have the
power o amend the financials afler issue, If applicable, The Group's management has made an assessment of is ability to conlinue as a going concern and |s satished that | has the resources
to continue in business for the forezeeable future. Furlhermore, management is not aware of any materdial uncerlainties that may cast
Konliki Finance Limited is a imited liability company incorporated and doméciled in the Republic of Fiji. The principal activites of the significant doubt on the Group and the company’s ability fo conlinue as a going concem. Therefore, the financial statements continue o
Company are described in Mole 28. be prepared on the going concermn basis.
The Subsidiary, Platinum Insurance Limited is a limited fability company incorporated and domiciled in the Republic of Vanuatu, The 241 I T E M
prrincipal activities of the Company are describad in Mote 28, o
) The preparation of the Company and the Groups financial slalements require management (0 make judgments, eslimates and
The Campany was fisted on the South Pacific Stock Exchange on 4 July 2018. assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the
reporting date. Howewver, uncertainty abou! these assumplions and estimates could resull in oulcomes that could reqguire a material
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS adjustment o the carmying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and labilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) which have been measured at fair vatue. The financial statements are presented in Fijian dofiars (FJD). Estimations and assumptions
Thi kery assumplions concarning the fulure and other key sources of estimation uncenainty at the stalement of financial position date that
Statement of compliance have a significant 1ask of causing & materal adjusiment (o the carrying amount of assets and labiliies within the next financial period are
discussed below:
The financial stalements of the Group and the Company have been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Banking Act 19495,
Fijl Companies Act 2015 and Inlemational Financial Reporting Standards {"IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board.
ncial B The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9 across all categores of financial assels in scope requires judgament, In particular,
assessment of significant increasa in credit sk, measurement of lifatime expacted credit losses and forward-ipoking assumptions. Thess
A separate sél of accounts have been prepared for the parent entity and are presented under the columns marked "Company” in the estimales are driven by a number of factars, changes which can result in different levels of allowances.
financial slatements. In these separate sel of accounts, the company's investment in its subsidiary is recorded at cost (less impairment, if . . ) . _
any). Dividends from the subsidiary are recognized in the profil or loss in the financial statements when the company's right 1o recelve the The Group's expectad credil loss (ECL) calculations are culpits of complex models with & number of underlying assumptions regarding
dividend is astablishad. the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies, Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgements and
estimales includa:
Eresentation of financial statpments
+  The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in cradil risk (SICR), In which case allowances for financial
The Group presents its statement of financial position in order of lguidity based on the Group's intenbon and perceived ability to assets should be measured on a lifetime expected credit loss (LTECL) basis;
recaverfseille the majorily of asselafiabilities of the comesponding financial statement line ifem. An analysis regarding recovery of + The segmentation of financial essets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis;
settemant within 12 months afier the reporing date (current) and mosa than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented * Development of ECL modats, including the various formulas and the chaoice of inputs,
in Mote 7, Mote 12 and Nole 25. + Determination of economic inputs, such as GOF, and their effect on probability of default (PD), exposure al defaull (EAD) and loss
given defaull (LGD), and
Financial assels and financial kabilittes are generally reporied gross in fhe statement of financial position except when IFRS nalting crilena +  Managameni cvariay on provision for expected cradit loss.
are mel.
It has been the Group's policy (o regulary review its models in the context of actual loss expenence and adjust when recessary.
Basis of consolidation
Measuremant of insurance liabilities
The Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of Kantiki Finance Limited (the Company’} and its Subsidiary as al 30 June
2022 The insurance labllity is subject to a lisbility edequacy test, to determine whether the lkability {5 sufficient (o meet fulure daims and
administration costs for the remaining term of the current policies. The basis of the assessment requires judgement on future claims and
Thie Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisiion, being the date on which the Group obiains control, and conlinue o be future administrations costs in relation to gross uneamed premiums. The measuremnent of insurance liabilities thus requires judgement, in
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. particular estimates of the timing of the cash flows.
The Financial Statements of the Subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting perdod as the parent Company, using consistent
aceounting policies.
Al Intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full.
KONTIKI KONTIKI
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2.2. CHANGE IN A MTIN IcY 2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuwed
ENDE (8] Ls] €} Financial instruments

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which became or were affective for annual periods beginning on
or aftar 1 July 2021, The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amandment thal has been issued but is not yet
effective.

Covid-18-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-12-Related Renl Concessions - amendmen to IFRS 16 Leases. The amendmenis provide reliel
o lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequance of the
Covid-18 pandemic. As a practical expadient, 2 lessae may elect nol 1o assess whelher a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor
is @ lease modificalion. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulling from the Covid-12 relfated
rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not-a lease modification.

The amendment was intended to apaly unlidl 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing, on 31 March 2021,
the IASE extendad the period of application of the practical sxpedient to 30 June 2022 The amendment applies to annual reperting
penods beginning on or-after 1 April 2021, This amendment had no impact on the consclidated financlial statements of the Group,

- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a} Foreign currencies

The financial stalements are presented in Fiji dollars (FJD), which is the Company and the Group's functional and presentation
currancy. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functonal currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monatary asseis and labilibes denominaled in foreign currencies are relransiated al the funclional currency rale of axchange ruling at
the balance dote.

All differences are taken io the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Mon-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in @ foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transaction. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates when the fair value is
determined.

b} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipmen! is staled al cosl less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such cosls
include the cost of replacing par of the property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition critera is met.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its costis recognised in the carmyang amount of the proparty plant and equipment as
a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehansive iIncomea as incurmad.

Depreciation ks calculated on a straight line basis over the usaful life of the asset as follows:

Rate
Cifficn aquipmant 2%
Furniture & fiftings 20%
Motor vehicies 20%
Building 2.5%
Leasshold land Term of lease

Anitem of property, plant and equipment iz derecognised upon disposal or when no Tulure economic benefits are expected from ils
use or disposal, Any gain or loss arnising on derecognition of the assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included in the slatement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the
yaar the asset is derecognised.

Building on feasehoid and is depreciated using Ihe straight-ine method over their estimated useful lives or the remaining pericd of
the lease whichever is shorter,

The assei's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year
erd.

Recegnition and initial measurement

The Group recognises a financial assel or a financial Bability In s statement of financial positicn when, and only when, the Group
becomeas party to the contraciual provisions of the instrument.

Except for loans and advances thal do not have & significant financing component at initial recagnition, the Group measures a
financial asset or financial lability at its fair value plus or minus, N the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair valee
through profil or loss, transaclion costs (hatl are directly altributable to the acquisiion or issue of the financial assel or financial
liability.

Tha Group measuras Cash and cash equivalents, Due lo customers of financial assets, Receivables from customers and Non-listed
financial assets and liabilities al amorised cost.

The financial asset Is subsequently measured by one of the following methods:

= amortised cosl,

« fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH) - debt investments,

« fair value through other comprahansive income (FYOCH) - equily investmants, or
« fair value through profil or loss (FVYPL).

Financial assats are not reclassified subsequent to thelr initlal recognifion unless the Group changes ils business model lor managing
fingncial @sseta, in which case all affected financial assels are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the businass modal.

A lnancial assel s measurad at amortised cost if It meets both of the loliowing conditions and s not designated as at fair value
through peofit or loss:

« it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels to collect conlractual cash Bows (busingss model assessment);
and

+ [t5 contractual termns give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely paymeants of principal and interest (SPPI 1esl) on the
principal amount oulslanding.

Financial asseis measured al amortised cost are subsequently measured al amodised cosl using the effective interest method, The
amortised costis reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairmeant are recognised
in prafit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition s recognised in profit or loss.

A debl Investmenlt is measured al falr value through other comprehensive income if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as-at fair value throwgh profit or loss:

+ (1 is held within a businezs model whose chjective is achievad by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;
and

* its confractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income are subseguently measured at fair value. Interest income
calcuiated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and Impairment ane recognisad in prafit or loss,
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprabensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profil or loss.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
c) Financial i nts - ¢] Financial instruments - continued
Modifications of financial assets

Equlty investmants measured at fair value through other comprabensiva income are subsequantly measured at fair value. Dividands
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of parl of the cost of the investmenl.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.,

O initial recognition of an equity investiment that is not held for trading, the Group may imevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the Investmenl's fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured al amortised cost or falr value through other comprehensive income as described
above are measured at falr value through profit or loss. On initial recognition, the Group may irevocably designate a financial assel
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amonised cost or at falr value through other comprehensive Income as at
fair value through profit or loss if delng so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mizmatch thal would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at fair value through prafilt or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any
interast or dividand income, are recognised in profit or loes

Business model assessment

Business modal azsessment involvas determining how financial assels are managed in order to generale cash flows, The objective
of the business model is to hold assets and collect contractual cash flows. Any sales of the assel are incidental to the objective of the
model. The contractual cash flow characterislics assessment Involves assessing the contractual features of an instrument o
determing if they give rise 1o cash flows thal are consistent with & basic lending amangement.

The SPPI test

Confraclual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement if they represen! cash flows that are solely paymants of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI). Principal s defined as the fair value of the instrument at initial
racognifion. Principal may chiange over the life of the instrument due to repayments or amartization of premiumidiscount. Interest is
defined as the consideration for the tme value of money and the credit risk assoclated with the principal amount outslanding and far
other basic lending risks and costs, and a profit margin. If the Group identifies any confractual features that could significantly modify
the cash flows of the instrument such that they are no lenger consistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset
is classified and measured at FYTPL,

Deposits are accounted for al amortised cosl, Interest on deposits, calculated using the effective inlerest rate method, is recognised
as interest expense. Intarest on borrowings s recognised using the effective interest rate method as interest expense.

Derecognition of financial assets

Tha Group derecognises a financial assat, such as a loan to & customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated o
the extenl that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extant that
an impairment loss has nol already been recorded. The newly recognised Ioans are classibed as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
PUrpOSES.

The Group derecognises a financial assel when the confractual rights 1o the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it fransfers
the righls to raceive the contractual cash fiows in & transaction in which substantially ail of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assel are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the rsks and rewards of
ownershipand it does not retain caniral of the financial asset.

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group evaluates whether the cash fiows of the modified asset are substantially
different. I the cash llows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash fiows from the orginal financial asset are
deemed o have expired. In this case, the ofriginal financial asset ks derecognised and a new financial assel s recognised at falr
value.

It the: cash flows of the maodified asset carried at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the modification does not rasult in
derscognition of the financial asset, In this case. the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial assel and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross camying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. If such a
miedification is camed out because of firancial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presanted together with impairment
losses, In other cases, It is presenied as interest income.

Dabt i g5 {0 custome othar

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are ol designated al fair value through profit or loss, are dassified as
liabilithes under 'deb issued and other borrowed funds’ or 'dues 1o cuslomers’, where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Company and Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or anathar financial asset for a fixed number of cwn
equily shares. The components of compound financial instrumenis, that comain both Habslity and equity etementis, are accounted for
saparately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afler deducting from the Instruments as a whole the
amount separately determined as the fair valua of the liability component on the date of issue

After inltial recognition, debl issued and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rala method.

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured al amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on izsved funds, and costs that are an Integral part of the effective interest
rale (EIR). A compound financial instrument which contains both a liabiity and an eguily component is separated at the issue date.
The Group classifies all financial liabiities as subsequently measured af amortised cost,

Deposits are accounted for al amortised cosl, Intarest on deposits, calculated using the effective interast rafe method, is recognised
as inlerest expense. Interest on borrowings is recognised using the effective inlerest rate melhod as interest expense.

All loans and borrowings are initiafly recognised at falr value less directly aftributable transaction costs, and have not basn
designated as al fair value through the statemeni of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

After initial recognition, interesl bearing loans and bomowings are subsequenlly measured at amorlised cost using the effective
interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised on Ihe slalement of profit or loss and other comprahensive income when the abiliies are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Financial liabiliies al fair value through the statement of profit or loss and other comprahaensive income includes financial llabilites
held for trading and firancia! liabilites designated upon initial recogniticn as al fair value through the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income,

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading it they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near lerm. Gains or Insses on
labiiities held for trading are recognised on the stalement of profit or loss and olher comprehensive income.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
¢} Einancial instruments - continued d) Impairmant of financial assets continuad
Derecognition of financial labilities Lalculation of expected credit loss continued

A Tinancial liability s derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancalled or expires. If an existing financial
lighility Is replaced by another from the same counter-pary on substantially different terms, or the terms of the existing liability anz
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated as a derecognifion of the onginal lability and the recognition of a
new liability at fair value, The difference in the respective carrying amaunt of the existing liability and the new lability is recognised as
a gainfoss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehansive income.

The Group records (he allowance for expected credil losses for all loans and othar debt financial assets not held at FYPL, together
with loan commitmants in accordance with IFRS 9. Equity instruments are not subject to impalment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowanca is based on lhe credil losses expected Lo arise over the Rfe of the assel (the lilelime expacted credil loss or
LTECL), uniess there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12
months” expecited credit loss (12mECL). The Group's poticies for delermining if there has been a significant Increase in credil risk are
set out in this note.

The 12mECL is the porfion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that resull Trom default eventz on a financial instrumenl thatl are
probable within the 12 months after the reporting data.

LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on a collective basis for both the secured and unsecured portfolios. The Group's policy for
grouping financial assels measured on a collective basks is explained in this note;

Tha Group uses an expected credit loss approach as required under IFRS 9 to measure allowance for credit losses.

This impairment model measuras credil loss allowances for inanclal assets using a three-stage approach based on the extent of
credil deleroration since orgination:

« Stage 1 - 12 month ECL applies to all financial assets that have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since
orngination and ara not credit impaired, Stage 1 financial assels also include financial assets whera the credit risk has improved,
and the assel has been reclassified from Stage 2. The ECL is computed using & 12 month probability of defaull (FD) and the
estimated loss glven default (LGD),

+ Slage 2 — When a financial asset experiences a SICR subsequent to origination, bul is not credil impaired, it is considered to ba in
Stage 2. This Stage also includes assets where the credit risk has improved, and the financial instrument has been reclassified
from Slage 3, The ECL s compuled using the lifetime PD thal represenis the probabiity of defaull occurring over the remaining
estimatad |ife of the financial asset, and the estimated LGD,

« Stage 3 = Financial assels considered credit impaired are (ncluded in this slage, Similar 1o Slage 2, the credit loss allowance
continues 1o be based on the LTECGL. The ECL is computed using a 100% PD and the estimated LGD.

Lalculation of expected credit loss

The ECL & calculaed by measuring expecied cash shorifalis, discounted by the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expecis to recaive,

The key elements of the ECL calculation are oullined belaw,
= PD - The probability of default is-an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given lime honzon. A defaull may only happen at a
cerain time ovar tha remaining estimated life, if the facility has nol bean previously derecognisad and is still in the portiolio.

+ EAD = Ther exposure al default is an estimate of the exposure al a future defaull date, taking into account expected changes in the
axposure after the reporting date, Including repayments. of principal and Interest, whether scheduled by confract or otherwise,
expecied draw-downs on commitied facilities, and acorued intarest from missed payments

* LGD - The loss given defaull s an estimate of the loss ansing in the case where a default occurs at a given tima. It is based on the
difference betwean the contractual cash flows due and those that the Group would expect to recelve, including from the realisation
of any coliateral, It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

+ Stage 1 — The 12mECL is calcilated as the portion of LTECL thal represants the ECL that resulls from default evenis on a
financial assel that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The 12mECL allowance s calculsted based an the
expectation of a default occurring n the 12 months following the reporting date. These expectad 12-month defaull probabilites are
applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expacted LGD and discounted by the orgnal EIR.

= Stage 2 — When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination the allowance Is credit loss
allowance is caiculated using the LTECL. The mechanics are similar 1o those explained above, bul PDs and LGDs are estimated
aver the lifetime of the instrumant. The expected cash shorfalls are discounted by an approximation ta the original EIR.

+ Stage 3 - For financial assets considered credit-impaired, the lifetime expected credit losses is used for these (oans, The mathod is
similar to that for Stage 2 assete with the PD sat at 100%,

Forward-looking (nformation

The Group indudes prospective Information (such as GOF growth) in determining its expected credit loss. This information is
saurced from publichy-available economic data and forecasts. The inputs and models used for calculaling expacted credit lossas may
not always capiure ail characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or
overiays may ba made as temporary adjustments using expert credil judgmant

Tha Group assasses whether thare has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of defaull occurring over the expected e of the loan. The assessment considers bormower-specific quantitative and
qualitative information without consideration of collateral, and the impact of forward-locking macroeconomic factors.

The common assessments for SICR include macroeconomic outlook, management judgement, and delinguency and monitoring.
Forward-locking macroaconomic factors are a key companent of the macrosconomie outlook. The importance and relevance of each
specific macroeconomic factor depends on faclors such as the type of product and the characteristics of the financial instrumeants.
With regards to delinquency and monitoring, thare is a rebuttable presumption that the credit risk of the loan has increased since
initigl recognition when confreclual paymenis are more than 30 days overdue, In addition, an account is considered to have
expenenced a SICR when it is being provided with COVID assistanca, or when it has been extended by more than 3 months. The
account is then reclassifed from Stage 1 to Stage 2

Expected life

When measuning expected credit loss, the Group considars the maximom conlractual period over which the Group is exposed o
credit risk. All contraciual terms are considerad when determining the expected life, Including prepaymant, and extension and rollovar
options. For revolving credit facilities, the expecled life is estimated based on the period over which the Group Is exposed to credit
risk and how the credit losses are mitigated by management aclions.

Presentation of allowance for credit losses in the statement of financial position:

Financ:al assets measured at amonised cost: 85 a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the financial assets.
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2.3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuwed

8}

a)

h)

Del n aw

Tha Group considers a financial instrumaent to be in default as a result of one or more koss events that occurred after the date of inlial
recognition of the instrument and the loss event has a negative impact on the astimated fulure cash flows of the instrumant that can
be reliably estimated. This includes events that indicate;

« significant financial difficulty of the bomowear;

+ default or delinguency in interest or principal payments;

+ high probability of the borrowar entering a phasa of bankruptcy or a financial rearganisation; and

= measurable decrease In the estimated fulure cash flows from the loan or the underdying assals thal back the loan,

Tha Group considers that defaull has ocourmed and classilies the Tinancial assel as impaired when it is mora than 90 days past due,

Tha Group holds collateral for secured loans and may sell the collateral In the absence of default by the loan accoun! holder. For the
purposes of ECL calculations, the Group has taken the fair value of these collaterals 1o be Snil and notl included the fair value of the
collaterals held in the calculation of ECL.

Write-off policy

Tha Group writes off an impaired financial aszet (and the related impairment allowance), either partially or n full, when thera is no
realislic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, wrile-off is generally afler receipt of any proceeds from the
realisation of security. In clreumstances where the nel realisable value of any collateral has been determined and there is no
reasonable expectation of further recovery, wrile-off may ba eariier. In subsequen! periods, any recovenies of amounts previocusly
written off are disclosed as other income in the statement of profit or less and other comprehensive Income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash |n banks that are readily conveddible to a known amount of cash and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Propayments and other assots

Prepayments and other assals include interest receivable on loans and investments, advance paymants and deposits.

In the consolidation process, related party receivables from the Subsidiany such as insurance commission and dividends recorded in
the Company's book of account ame eliminaied against cormesponding payables recorded in the Subsidiary Company's genaral
fedger,

Empleyee entitlemants

Provision is made for annual leave astimated to be payable to employees al balance dale on the basis of stalutory and contraciual
requirements

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive] as a resull of a past evenl, it is
probable that an oculflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and reliable astimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects a provision (o be reimbursed, the reimbursemant is
recognised as-a separate asset but only when reimbursement s virlually certain. If the effect of time value of money ks material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash fllows at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where approgriale, the risks specific o the kabiity, Where discounting 5 used, the increase in the
provision die to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expenss.
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2.3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
h) Provisions continued
Pravigion for claims payabls and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR]

Qutstanding claims are assessed by reviewing Individual claims and making allowance for claims incurmed butl nol reported,
foreseeabie avents, past experence and industry trends. They are stated in tha balance shest nat of any reinsurance or othar
recoveras.

Provision s also made for olaims IBNR based on foreseeable events, past experence and industry trends. In the current year this
allowance was calculated by reviewing the total Subsidiary exposure on all poficies written by the Subsidiary, by the Subsidian's
Actuary. The IBNR is determined independently by the Subsidiany's Actuary Pater Davies B.Bus Sc., FIA, FNZSA,

1) Unearned ums

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyhosders and excludes taxes colleclted on behall of stawutory parties. The
eamed portion of premium recaived and receivable is recognised as revenua. Premium revenue B recognised as eamed from the
date of attachment of risk, over the period refated 1o the insurance contract in accordance with the pattern of the risk expected under
the contract. The unearmead porfion or premiums not eamed at the reporing date is recognised in the statement of financial position
as uneamed premium, The provision for uneamed premium is verified by the Subsidiany’s Acluary Peler Davies B.Bus Sz, FIA,
FNZSA.

i} Deferred acquisition cost and commissions income

Tha Company eamed commission for vinging in Insurance business for the Subsidiary Company up until 30 June 2018, The
commission eamed by the Company was recognised as incoma in its book of accounts. However. the related brokerage costs (costs
associaled with oblaining and recording insurance business) incurred by the Subsidiany are capitalised and amortised, consistent with
the eaming pattern of the refated insurance premium for that business. In the consolidation process, the commission income
recorded in the Company’s books were aliminated against the related assel recorded in the Subsidiary Company’s books.

k} Income tax

Current tax

Current tax assets and llabifities for the curren! and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid
to, the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounl are those thal are enacted, or substantively
enacted, by the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income s recognised in equily or other
comprehensive income respectively. Management periodically evaluates positions laken in the tax returns with respect o situations
in which applicable tax regulafions are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. Detailed disclosures
are provided in Note 5,

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax |s provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance date between the tax basaes of
assels and habiilies and thelr carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, Delerred income lax llabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences:;

+ axcepl where the deferred income tax liability arses from goodwill amortisation or the initial recognition of an asset or liabifity in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, ‘associates and Interest in joint venturas,
excepl where the timing of the reversal of the lemporary difference can be controfled and il 5 probable thal the lemporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continwed 2.3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuwed
K} Income tax continued n} Revenue recognition

Deferred tax continued

Deferred income tax assels ane racognised for all deductible temporary differences, carmy-forward of any unused tax assels and
unused tax losses, to the extent that # Is probable thal taxable profit will be available zgainst which the deductible temparary
differences. camy-forward of unused tax assals and unused tax kosses can be ulilised:

« axcepl where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
assel or llability In 2 trarssaction that i3 not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affecis nelther the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss: and

+ in respect of deductble lemporary differences associated wilh investments in subsidiaries, associales and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be ulilised,

The carrying amouni of defarred income tax assels is reviewed at each balance date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficiant taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred income lax assel [0 be ulilised

Deferred income tax assets and fiabiliies are measured al tax rates that are expected to apply o the period when the asset is
realised or the liabdity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or substantivaly anacted at the balance
date.

Income tax for the Subsidiary Company

In the Republic of Yanuatu, no income taxes of any kind are payable,

I} Intangible assets

Intangitle assets acquired separalely are measured on initial recognition al cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
camied al cost less any accumuiated amorlisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generaled intangible assets,
excluding capitalised development cosis, are nol capitalised and expenditure is reflecied in the staterment of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which the axpanditure is incurred.

Thea usalul ives of intangible assels for the Group are assessed 1o be finile which s systematically amorlised over iis useful e from
the lima that it is available for use until it Is derecognised.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amorisation method for an intangible asset with
a linlle usalul life |5 reviewed al leasl al each financaal year end. Changes in the expected useful lfe or expected pattem of
consumplion in future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization pericd or methed, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes In accounting estimates. The amorlisalion expense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and 1oss and other comprehensive income in the expense category consisient with the function
of the infangible assets.

Gain or losses arising from the derecogniion of an intangible assel aré measured as the diference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of prafit and loss and other comprahensive
income when the asset is derecognised.

Trade and er

Liabilities for irade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost {inclusive of VAT where applicable) which is the Tair value of the
consideration fo be paid in the future for goods and services received whether or not billed to the entity. Amounts payable that have
been denominaled in foreign curmencies have been lranslated lo local currency using Lhe rates of exchange ruling al the end of the
financial period

M A& HC

Interest income and expense

Met interest income comprises Interest incomae and interest expense calculated using the effective interast method, Refer to MNote 3.1
and Note 4.1,

In its inlerest incomelexpense calculated using the effective Interest meathod, the Group only includes Interest on those financial
imstruments that are seloul in Note 7, Note 8 , Note 12 and Nole 20,

Other interest income/expense includes all financial assatsiliabilities measured al FVPL, other than those held for trading, using the
contraciual inlerast rate.

Interest incomefexpense on all rading financial assetsfiabllities is recognised as a part of the fair value change In Met trading
income.

The Group calculates interest income on financial assets, other than those considered credit-impaired, by applying the EIR to the
grass carrying amount of the financial assal.

For all financial instrumeants measured at amartised cost, inferest income and expanse is recorded al the effective inlerest rate, which
= the rate hat exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipls through the expectad life of the financial instruments or
a shorter period, where appropriale, 1o the nel camyng amount of the financial asset or financial lakdlity. The calculation lakes into
account all contractual terms of the financial instruments and includes any fees or incremeantal cosls that are directly attributabée to
the instrument and are an integral pan of the effective interest rate, but not future credit losses. The carmying amaunt of the financial
assel or financial liabilily is adjusted if the Company revised i1s estimates of paymenis or receipis. The adjusted carrying amaount is
calcuiated based on the origmal effective interest rate and the change in carmying amount is recordad as interest income or expanse.

Fee income

The Group and Company eams fea and commission income from a range of financial services il provides o Hs customers. Fee and
commEssion income Is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group and Company expecis to be
entitled in exchange for providing the services.

The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their satsfaction, are identified, and delermined, al the inceplion of the contract.
Insurance administrative feg
Insurance administrative fee is brought to account on an eamed basis.

Underwriling activities

Revenue from underwriting activities includes revenue derved from premiums and commissions received Revanue from
underwriting activities is recognised on complation of each month's activities

o} Impalrmoent of non-financials assets

The Group assasses al each reporting date, or more frequently if events or changes and circumstances indicate that the earrying
valua of a non financial asset may be impaired. If any such Indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount Where the camying amount of an assel (or cash
generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amouni, the asset (or cash generaling unit) is considared impaired and is wrilten down to its
recoverabie amount

For assets an assignment is made at each reporting dale as to whether there is any indication thal previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable
amount. & previousty recognised impairment loss s revarsed only if there has been a change in the estimales usad lo delarming the
assel's recoverable amounl since the last impairmen! loss was recognised, If that is the case the carrying amount of the assel s
increasad (o its recovarable amount
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2.3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continwed 2.3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continwed
p) Comparative figures u) IERS 76 - Leases
Comparative figures have been amended where necessary, for changes in presentation in the current year. The Group assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or containg, a lease. Thal is, If the confract corveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Earnings per shara
Y Tha Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for ail leases, except for short-term leases and eases of low-
Basic eamings per share is determined by dividing net profit after income tax attributable to shareholders of the Group, excluding any value assels. The Group recognises lease liabilities 1o make lease paymenlts and right-ol-use assels represanting the right to use the
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the number of ordinary shares oulstanding at the end of the financlal year, underlying assets.
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year, Refer to Note 22
Tha Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for
f) Divi use), Right-of-use assets are measured at cosl, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, end adjusted for any
i remeasuramant of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabililies recognised, inttial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement dale less any lease incentives received. Righl-of-use

Dividends are recognised as a llabllity and deducted from equity in the Group's financial statements when they are approved by the eite mrad sisd on & sraight-ine basls over tha 1sase term.

directors. Intenm dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and ara no langer at the discretion of the Group.

e o o The Group has lsase cantracts for office spaces and repassession storage yard, used in its operations. Leases of office spaces and
8} -Sogrwnt Infotimgtian the repossession storage yard have terms of between 1 and 9 years. The Groups obligations under its leases are secured by the

; ] " h ;
A business segment s a group of assets and operalions engaged in providing products or services thal are subject to risks and %100 bo 1D i asaets. O Iy M Ctoup: s restdcind Tion assioniniand millaasiop fha eaced atesiy

returns that are different from those of other business segmenis, A geographical segment is engaged in providing products and At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments fo
sarvices within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks and relums that are different from those of segments be made aver he lease term, The lease payments Include fixed payments (less any leass incentives recelvable), discounted using

operating in oiher economic environment, the incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date.
{a) Geographical segment Refer to Mote 19 for the right-of-use assets and lease liabililes breakdown.
The Company cperates predominantly in Flji and the Subskdiary operates in Vanuatu, therefore two gecgraphical areas for Group Company
reporting purposes. Refer to Note 31(a). 2022 2021 2022 2021
ib) Business segmant 3. REVENUE 5 5 $ 5
Thit Company and the Group cperates predominantly in the financial services industry. Refer to Note 31(b). 31 In u ulated usi h intarest math
Debt financial assets at amortised cost 3,389.167 3,503,688 3,198,871 3,298,632
t) Determination of fair values Receivables from customers 33,546,147 40,138,259 33,546,147 40,138,289

314 641,987 74501 43,437 931
In arder 1o show how fair values have been derved, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, b apssicd g cidlon: e i AT

as summarsed belkow:

32 EeeslIncome

= Leval 1 financkal Instrumants = Those whers the inputs usad in the valuation are unadjusied quoted prices from active markets for Fees and charges 1,023,587 518,406 1.023,587 918,408
identical assels or lizbilities that the Group has access to at the measuremeant dale. The Group considers markeis as aclive only if 1.023 587 Q18,406 1,023,587 Q18,406

there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liablities and when there are
binding and exercisable price quoles available on the balance shael dale.

3.3 Mon-Trading Income

= Level 2 financial instrumants - Thosa whare the inputs that ama used for valuation and ane significant, are derived from directly or Unrealised galns on financial assels 345 958 731658 . -
indirectly observable marke! data avallable over the entire penod of the instrument’s life. Such Inputs mclude quoted prices for Dividend income 89 954 87513 - 700,000
simitar assels or liabilities in aclive markets, quoled prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other Bad debis recovered 1,053,308 208 387 1,053,306 206,387
than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatifities, and credil spreads. In addition, adjustments may be Gain on disposal of fixed assets 12450 147,746 12,450 147 746
required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent lo which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued Insurance ComMMISSion 17,639 24,162 17 639 24,162
Instrument. However, il such adjustiments are based on unchservable inpuls which are significant to the entire measuremant, the
Group will classify the instrumants as Lovel 3. 1,618,357 1.177.466 1,083,395 1,078,205

« Level 3 financial Instruments — Those that include one or more unobservabde inputs that is significant to the measurement as a
whala.

Leval 1 hierarchy of valuation ks most applicable to the Group, Refer to Note 9 for details of hierarchy for valuation of financial assets
al fair value through profit or loss.

KONTIKI KONTIKI
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4.1

42

4.3

4.4

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 20
$ $ $ §

EXPENSES
Included in expenses are:
Interes caleuyl using the o i met
Term deposits 9222177 11,755,735 9.222.177 11.755.735

8222 177 11,755,735 8222177 11,755,735
Other interest and similar expense
Debt iszued and other bommowed funds 1,375,000 733929 1,375,000 733.928
Inlerest expense on lease liabilities (Mote 19) 123,479 371,738 111,106 371.738

1,488 479 1,105.667 1,486,106 1,105,667
Salaries and wages 76730956 7.046,315 T673.056 7046315
FNPF employer contribution 417 207 336,847 417,207 336,847
FNU Levy 75225 71,611 75,225 71.611
Others 113,898 135,192 113.898 135,102

8,280,286 7,589,965 8,280,286 7,588,965
Other oparating expenses
Accounting fees 36,842 87,380 36,842 79,380
Auditors remuneration 60,375 57,085 42 263 40,058
Bank charges 30,823 30454 28,784 28,536
Directors fees and allowances 301 6&T 271,160 301,667 271,160
Cithar operating expeanses 5406015 5,365,900 3. 714,107 3.135.507

5835722 5,811,979 4,123,673 3,555,041

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

A reconciliation between income tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the lax rate for the year ended 30 June are
as foliows:

Accounting profit before income tax 7,878,762 4,598,429 6,846,155 4,196,684

Prima facie income tax an the operating profit* TBY BTG 459,843 684 616 419 BG6E

Ciher income exempted {113.963) {50,322) {10,703) {10,347)
Tax effect of non-deductible differences (12,087} (78.573) (12.087) {TB.573)
Income tax expensa reported in the statement of profil and koss and

other comprehensive income 661,826 330,548 661,826 330,948

M A& HC
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE continued
* The Group/Company prima facke income tax was calculated at 10% of the Company's operating profit due to the Company being listed
on the South Pacific Stock Exchange (SPX) in July 2018, The subsidiary company in based in the Republic of Vanuatu where no income
taxes of any kind are payable.

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
-3 $ 13 s
Deferred income tax assel at 30 June relates to the Tollowing:
Allowanca for impairmen losses 9559 828 1.714,508 58,828 1,714,508
Accelerated depreciation for book purposes 45,932 45,680 45,932 45,680
Differance between right-of-use assels and lease llabllites 26517 30418 26,517 an41a
Employesa banafit liatbility 17,819 12,692 17,819 12,692
1,050,086 1,803,298 1,050,096 1,803 288
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalenis consist of cash on hand and at bank. Cash and cash equivelenis included in the Statements of Cash Flows
comprise the following amounts on the Statement of Financial Position;
Cash on hand 14,268 3,968 14,268 3,968
Cash at bank 1,BES 597 2.850,110 1,429,841 1,857 561
Damand deposits 24,395,658 38,795,487 24,395,659 389,785,487
26,078,924 42 549 575 25,839,768 41,657,026
7. RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS
Credit conlracts 133,333,381 149,191,963 133,233,381 149,191,953
Hire purchase 6,783,600 9678426 6,783,600 9,678.426
Insurance premium 2,498 23,734 - -
140,112,479 158,804,123 140,116,981 158,870,389
Less; Interes! suspense {1,592,301) {1.848.717) {1,692,301) (1,848,717
Receivables pross carmying value 138,527,178 157,045,406 138,524,680 157,021,672
Less: Allowance for ECL {9,588.289) _ (17.145.081) 9.598.289) (17,145,081}
Met recaivable from customers 128,928 gag 139,900,325 128,926,381 139,876,591
Maturity analysis
Nat longer than 3 months 1,683,357 1,152,733 1,590,859 1,128.908
Langer than 3 months but not longer than 12 months 7,760,520 5,575,299 7,780,520 5,575,209
Longer than 12 months but not longer than 5 years 91,852,548 112,677,021 91,852 548 112677021
Longer than 5 years 38,913,054 39,489,000 38,913,054 39485001
140,118,479 158,804,123 140,116,981 158,870,389
OMNTIKI
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7. RECEIVABLE FROM CUSTOMERS continued

r i n

As at 30 June 2022, trade receivables with an initial value of 9,598,289 (2021; $17,145,081) were impaired and provided for. Movements
in the ECL i detailed below.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for receivables from customers (net of interest
suspended) as at 30 June 2022

Expected
Gross Loss weighted Credit
30 June 2022 carrying value  allowance average loss Impaired
13 ]

Slage 1 102,492,238 1,084,148 1.06% No
Stage 2 23,390,628 1,840,926 7.02% Mo
Slage 3 12,644,312 6,868,215 54.32% Yes

138,527,178 9,508,289 6.93%
Managameant Overlay - -
Cverall 138,527,178 9,588,289 6.93%

No management overlay was taken in the 2022 financial year as the economic culkook s expecled lo be positive with the domestic
economy recovering due 1o the re-opening of the country to intemational visitors.

FROM TOM

CL forl and o
Movemants in Total Reconciliation
ECL allowance for  of movemeant
ECL in expected
credit loss
30 June 2021
5 5 3
Opening balance as at 1 July 2020 11,260,508 11,260,508 .
Loss aflowance equal to 12m ECLfincrease in provisions {5.498.231) 6,392 947 9,902 547
Loss allowance aqual to Hfetime ECL with SICR\ writa-off within the provision) B92.533 {B,792,008) -
Loss allowance equal to lifetime ECL that are credit impaired/{write back) 4,441,025 {765.612) {765,612)
Diract write-off - - 253,136
Management Overlay 6043246 6049246 6,049,246
Closing balance 17,145,081 17,145,081 14,829,717

Collateral secunty for loans and advances is manly molor vehicles,

See Note 25 on credil risk of loans and advances, which explains how the Company manages and measures credit quality of loans and
advances that are naither past due nor impaired,

A reconcillation of the allowance for impairment losses for receivables from cuslomess is as follows:

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
3 § 7 s
8. DEBT FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AM ISED COST
Receivables due from other financial institutions 18,490,000 47,085,000 18,350,000 41,750,000

Reconciliation
Tatal of movement
Movements in  allowance for  in expected
30 June 2022 ECL ECL crodit loss
& 5
Opening balance as at 1 July 2021 17,145,081 17,145,081 3
Loss allowance equal o 12m ECLIncrease in provisions [358,027) 12,628,453 12,629,453
Loss aflowance equal to lifetime ECL with SICR(write-off within the provision) (923,901) (13,731,574} -
Loss allowance equal to lifetime ECL that are credit impaired!(wrile back) {215,618) {395,420) {385,420)
Direct write-off - - 401,299
Management Overlay reversals (6,049.248) (6,049, 246) (6,049, 245]
Closing balance 8,598 280 9,598 288 6,586,086
Expected
welghted
Gross Loss average loss Cradit
30 June 2021 carrying value  allowance rate Impaired
$ $

Stage 1 105,069,878 1447178 1.38% Mo
Slage 2 36,730,634 2.564 826 5.98% Mo
Stage 3 15,244 654 7,083,833 46.47% Yes
Overall 157,045,406 11,005,835 T.07%
Management Cverlay = 6,049 248 3.85%

157,045,406 17,145,081 10.92%

Securities held 50,538,000 28,188,000 45,388,000 28,188,000
68,028,000 75,273,000 63,738,000 58,938,000

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Quoted equity shares
6,022 541 5803448

As at 30 June 2022, the Group had 56,022 541 of equity shares, The falr value of the equily shares Iz determined by reference io
published price quotations in an active markeat

Sel out below is a comparison, by class, of the carmying amcunts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments thal are: camied al Tair
value in the financial stalements.

Carrying Amount Fair Value
30-Jun-22 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Quotad equity shares 5,022,541 6,022 541 - - 6,022,541
30-Jun-21
CQuoted aquily zharas 5803 448 5,803 448 - - 5803448
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Group Company Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
5 § 5 5 5 5 $ -
10. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS 13. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Other deblors 2,001,754 2,159,648 2,001,754 2,159,648 E n i
Prepaymants 1,495,094 4,164,755 1,080,181 4,414,931 Cost:
Recaivable fram refated parly (Note 24)(b) - - ap3,77a 265.245 Al 1 July 1,173,425 1,157,104 1,173,425 1,157,104
Additions 34437 18,801 34,437 18.801
4.806:85 %5440 S8 O9e0,52 Disposals (44,839) (3.480) (44,839) {3,480)
At 30 June 1,163,023 1,173,425 1,163,023 1,173,425
11. INVESTMENT IN SUBSID Daprecistion;
) o At 1 July 750,550 563,703 750,550 563,703
?haﬁaaﬁ;h;ﬁgnﬁr:ﬁ;; Depreciation charge for the year 180,158 189,051 180,159 189,051
=. = 215,000 215,000 Disposal {32.878) (2,204) (32,878) {2.204)
AL 30 June 897 831 750,550 B97 831 750,650
The Company holds 100% of the ordinary shares of Platinum Insurance Limited (PIL). The resulis of PIL have been consolidated in these
financial statements, Nett written down value as al 30 June 265,192 422,875 265,192 422,875
12. DUE TO CUSTOMERS WJE_ELE :ﬂ i L]
5L
As al year end, due to customers is as follows; AL 1 July 1,862 640 1.840,763 1,862,640 1,840,763
Additions 212.251 55,785 292,251 55,785
'T I t 4.1 ; : I-'| 1 4 b 1 2 .i Dhml 3.?3“ 3‘3-9'}5 [2&3 ?Ht [33;91}8}
B fenouEs THASHT ENdenil WAy AR At 30 June 1,911 157 1,962,640 1,811,157 7,962,640
Sector concentration Daprooialicn;
AL 1 July 1,242,140 931,511 1,242,140 931.511
Individuats 98,815,771 134,332,936 98815771 134332036 Depreciation charge for the year 306,338 333845 306,338 333,645
Private sector businesses 18,318,508 23912928 18,318,509 231,912,928 Dizposal (249,194} (23.016) (242,194} (23,016}
Fublic enterprises 34,572,725 34,275,679 34 572,725 34,275,679 AL 30 June 1,299,284 1,242,140 1,296,284 1,242,140
MNon-prafit mstitutions 11,752,373 14,174,356 11,752,373 14,174,396
Non-bank financial instilutions 10,706,963 6506, 104 10,706 963 6,596,194 Ml wriltan down value as al 30 Juna 611,873 T20.500 511,873 ?20,500
Non-residienis - 30,000 - 30,000
Motor vehicles
174,166,341 213322133 174,166341 213,322,133 Cast:
AL July 80,531 1,301,327 980,531 1,301,327
Addifions 88,900 - 28,900 -
Maturity anolysls Disposal (54.180) {320.796) (54.180) (320,796)
1
Mot longer than 3 months 15,448,680 30,191,186 15,446,660 30,191,186 il dutng 1015254 EEN L RaES
Longer than 3 manths and not lenger than 12 months 59,643,767 76,282,753 59,643,767 76,282,753 Dapreciation:
o A o gy geas drwan. stns  iasy wome  swms  swesw s
Qi YORars f : p By u : p 1y De iation charge for the year 203,392 201,293 203,392 201,283
174166341 213322133 174,166,341 213322133 Dizpasal (46,381) (268,730} {46,381} (268,730}
Al 30 June 663 207 506,856 663,907 506,856
Met writien down value as at 30 June 351,344 473,635 351,344 473635
KOMNTIKI KOMTIK]
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13. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Building
Cost:

AL July
Additions
AL 30 Juna

Depraciation,

At 1 July

Depreciation charga for the year
AL 30 June

MNet written down value as a1 30 June

Leasahold land
Cost:

AL July
Additions

At 30 June

Deprecialfon,

At 1 July

Depreciation charge for the year
At 30 June

Net written down value as at 30 June

Wark In Progréss

Net book value as al 30 Jurwe

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software costs
Cost:

A1 July
Additions
Disposal

At 30 June

Amartization and impalment;
At 1 July

Amortisation

Dizposal

AL 30 June

Nat written down value as at 30 June

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
§ § 5 5
BiE0,B35 - 860,835 -
BE60,835 - 860,835
11,703 - 11,703 -
11,703 - 11,703
849,132 % 849,132
945,000 = 945,000 -
945 000 945,000
7,758 = 7,756 -
7.758 - 7.756
837 244 - 937 244
52.644 147,766 52 644 147,768
3,067.429 1,764,776 3067429 1,764,776
1,588,565 1,515,851 1,590,565 1,515,951
130,981 B3E14 130,981 83614
(38,.055) * {38,055} 3
1,682 451 1,500,565 1,692 491 1,589,565
1,128,233 BET 359 1,120.233 867,359
215,208 261 874 215208 261874
{38,055) - {38,055) a
1,308,387 1129233 1,308,387 1,129,233
386,104 470,332 386,104 470,332
KOMTIKI
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Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
5 5 5 3
15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables 296,118 521,610 272488 383,107
Payabla to related party (Mote 24) 24,150 25417 405,503 102,549
Accrued and other liabilites 1.476,719 1,692,901 1,468,843 1,680,017

1,796,285 2239928 2.147.815 2175673

Ternms and conditions of the above financial iabilitles are as follows:
- Trade payables are non-inferast bearing and are normally setiled as and when due.

16. UNEARMNED PREMIUM
Opaning balance T.683.976 9,345,090
Gross premiums written 3,737.283 1,701,838 .
Less premiums cancelled {2,080, 105) (G4 227 -
Less premiums eamed {2,218.545) (2.418,725) -

T.112.608 7683976 - -

Premiums eamead 2218545 2418725 -
Reinsurance axpanses (67, 146} (65,280} -
Premium ncoma® 2,151,389 2,353,456 -
*Pramium income includes premium earmed and nel reinsurance revenue.

17. PROVISIONS

a} Cuistanding claims 88,010 106,422
Ouistanding claims are based on assessmanis of all claims received by the Subsidiary prior to finalising the financial statemants.

b} Claims in d but not re IBMNR
A1 July 1,212,705 923,410 -
Loss reserve movement (6.260) 280 286 = -
AL 30 June 1,205,745 1.212,705 £ =
Total provisions as al 30 June 1,304,755 1319127 =
The Group's insurance portiolio has experienced some impact as a resull of COVID-19, The risk introducad by the outbreak of COVID-18
has affected claims provisions, There is a risk that the COVID-19 virus, on the economic consequences of responses (o the virus and
related economic factors could be more severa than estimated and, &8s a result the development of the claims over time could result in
fulure claims being higher than the current outstanding claims liability established.
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1T,

18.

18,

PROVISIONS continued

In establishing the impact of COVID-19 on claim’s liabilities, skignificant management and actuarial judgemant has been applied 1o derive a
reasonable estimate of polential fulure cash flows. Key areas of judgement related to the estimation of polential monetary loss, refated
key macroeconomic variables (such as GDP growth rale), reinsurance coverage and legal nisk. The Group assesses the impact of COVID
19 on the insurance jiabilites by conducting liabilty adequacy lest of insurance liabilities (net of related deferred acquisition costs) by
considerng factors such as reported caims, IBNR, future olaims and handling expenses.

The Group will continue o manitor developments closely and determine whether these will have major impact on the accounting of the
insurance liabilites;

Group Company
2022 2021 2022 201
5 $ s 5
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LI Iy
Annual leave 178,188 126,918 178,189 126816
LEASES
Cam a% i
Sat oul below are the camying amaounts of rght-of-use asseats recognised and the movements during the period:
Az al 1 July 2021 5,588,163 6.786,270 5,588,163 6,786,270
Additions 428,138 125,853 13,691 125,853
Remeasurement of right-ol-use assets (1,058,572} - {1.058,572) -
Depreciation expense {1,403.588) {1.313.860) {1,382 959) (1,313.860)
As at 30 June 2022 3,564,141 5,598,163 3,170,323 5,598,163
Set out below are the carmrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movemants during the pericd:
As a1 duly 2021 5,902 342 6,959,677 5,902 342 6,959,677
Additidns 436 857 125,853 13,681 125,853
Remeasurement of lease liability {1,058.572) - (1,058 572) -
Accretion of interest 123,478 3ar.738 111,106 a7T1,738
Payments 1,560,553} (1.554.976) (1,533,078) (1,554,926)
As al 30 June 2022 3,843,553 5,902,342 3,435 488 5,902 342
Thie fablowing are the amounts recognised in profit or loss;
Depraciation expense of right-of-use assels 1,403,588 1.313,960 1,382,959 1,313,950
Interast expense on lease liabilites 123.478 371,738 111,106 371,738
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1,627 .067 1,685 6598 1,494 065 1,685 608

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of 51,560,553 in 2022. The Company had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
leasa liabilities of NIl during the financial parod,

The ROU asset s amaortsed over tha term of each leased assel
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Group Company
2022 2021 2022 2021
5 § 5 5
20. DEBT ISSUED AND OTHER BORROWED FUNDS
Tier 2 Capital Bond 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000 20,000,000
Az at 30 June 2022, Kontiki Finance Limited had issued $20 milion worth of Tier 2 Capital Bonds with an average interest rate of 6.88%
e annum, payable guartarly. The bonds have a term of 7 years and are repaid in equal annual installmants over the last 5 years of the
Term of the Bond {20% of the Principal amount each year from year 3 to year 7)., Repayment of the bonds will commence in 2023,
21. SHARE CAPITAL
u id u I
Crdinary shares fully paid 14,870,625 14.614,121 14,870 626 14,614,121
During the year, the Company raised share capital totaling to $256,505 (2021: $836,373). The tofal number of shares at the end of the
year was 92 984 698 (2021, 92,753,105), The Group has & Dividend Reinvesiment Plan. Under the Plan shareholders may elect o
reinvest all or part of their dividend in additional ordinary shares to be fsseed by the Company, The dividend reinvestment price is sel al a
five percent discount to the weighted average price of KFL shares fraded on the SPX over the 30 days preceding the dividend
announcement. A final dividend of 1.5 conts per share, tofaling to 51,391,207, was declared from profits for the 2021 financial year and
paid in the 2022 financlal year. In addition, an interim dividend of 1.5 cents per share, totaling to $1,393,156, was declared and paid
during the financial year 2022,
22. EARMNINGS PER SHARE
Profit atiributable 1o crdinary shares for basic eamings 7.216,936 4,267 481
Weighted average ordinary shares at end of financial year 92_868 902 91,794 533
Basic earnings per share (3} 3 008 5 0.05
3. M TINGENT ITl
a) Contingenl Rabilities Mil_ il
b} Capital commilments 14,523,515 1,756,733
Capital expenditure of $14,523,515 is budgsted for the purchase of IT hardware and software, buildings, motor vehicles, office
furniture, fittings and equipment and software development for the company,
24. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Directors
The names of persons who were directors of Kontiki Finance Limited at the date of this repont are as follows:
Barry Whiteside (Chairman)
Daryl Tarte
Glen Craig
Griffon Emose
Litia Niumataiwalu
Chirk Yam
Cecil Browne (resigned on 12 May 2022}
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24.

5.

R T PARTY TRANS ued Company
2022 2021
() Owing bylito) related parties Transaction
- Piatinum Insurance Limited Insurance premiums {381,353} (T7,132)
= Piatinum Insurance Limited Insurance ckaims 303,773 265,245
- Diractors Direclaors feas {24,150) (25,417)
[c] Other related party transactions were as follows:
Expenses
- Kontiki Stockbroking Phe Limited Referral and broking lee 28 885 22,383
- Konltiki Capital Pte Limited Advisory and managerial services 28,031 21,314
- Compensation of key management perscnnel Directors feas and other benafits 30 887 271160
Ehort term employes benefits 2,027,516 1,874,440
Income
- Piatinum Insurance Limitad Dividand - 700,000

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk is inherent in the Group and Company's activities but it is managed throwgh a process of ongoing idenfification, measurement and
maniloning subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of rsk management s critical to the Group and the Company's
profitability and each individual within the Group and Company is accountatie for (he risk exposures relating to their responsibilites. The
Group and Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk In the main, The Asset and Liabllity Committee (ALCO)
has oversight of liquidity risk, the Board has oversight of credit risk, and the Board Audit Committee has oversight of all other risks.

The main risk arising from the Group's financial statements are credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Diractors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarnsed below,

Eredit risk

Credit dsk s the risk that the Group and Company will incur a loss because s customers or counlerparties fail to discharge thelr
contractual obligations. The Group and Company manages and confrofs credil risk by setling imits on the amount of risk it s willing to
accep! for indvidual counterparties and by maonitoring exposures in relabion to such limits.

Credit risk 1= managed through credit varfication procedures, Loan recelvable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. The credit
gualily of cusiomer accounis which are neither past due nor impaired Is cassified o be good and are expected 1o be recovered,

The Company has established an account review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the creditworthiness on
customars. The credil quaiity raview process allows the Company lo assess the polential loss as a resull of the risks to which il is
exposed and lake comeclive action.

Countarparty limits for lquidity placements are established using credit agency risk ratings. Balow also shows maximum exposune o
credit risk of the financlal assals at the end of reporting period.

Group Company
2022 202 022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents 26,078,924 42,649,575 25,839,768 41,657,026
Receivable from customers 128,928,880 139,800,325 128,926,381 139,876,591
Debt financial assets at amortised cost 69,028,000 75,273,000 63,738,000 69,938,000
Prepayments and other assels 3,586,853 6,324,403 3455708 6,835,824
Financial assets al fair value through profit or koss 6,022,541 5,803,448 - -

233,845 207 269,950,751 221,955,867 258,311,441
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N ] E o D CIES

C t risk ¢ ved

Impalrment assessment

Dafinition of defaulf and cum

The Group and Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all
cases whan the borower becomaes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether & customer is in default, the Group and Company also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness o pay, When such events occur, the Group and Company carefully considers whether the event should
resull in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Slage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Slage 2 is appropriate.
Such ovents include:
= The borrower ks in defaull or near default;
The borrower requested emergency funding from the Company,
The borrower has past due liabilities to public creditors or employees;
The borrower |5 deceased,
A material decraasa in the underying coliateral value where the recovery of the loan is expected from the sale of the collateral;
A material decrease In the borrower’s lurnover or the loss of a major cuslomer,
A covenant breach not waived by the Company, and
The debtor {or any legal entity within the debtor's group) fing for bankrupicy application/protection.

It is the Group and the Company's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured” and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when nane
of the defaull criteria have been present for at leasl six conseculive months. The decision whether to I:‘.f.i':l&si‘l':.' an assel as $lage 2 or
Stage 1 once cured depends on the updaled credit grade, at the tme of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant
Increasa in credil risk compared 1o initial recognition.

The level of provision maintained varies according lo the classification of loans in accordance with the current arrears position of the
accounts, Provisions may be adjusted where there are any known difficulties in the cash flows of the cuslomess, or infringement of the
original lerms of the contracl.

individually assessed afowances

The Company and the Group determines the allowances appropriate for each individually significant loan or advance on an individua!
basis. ltems considered when determining allowance amounts include the susiainability of the customers business plan, s ability fo
improve parformance ance a financial difficulty has arsen, projected receipts and the expected dividend payout should bankruptey ensue,
the availability of oiher financial support and the reliable value of collateral and the timing of cash flows. The impairment losses are
avaluated at each reporting date, unless unforesesen circumstances require careful attention.

Mlowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans and advances that are not individually significant and for individually significant
Ioans and advances whera there is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment. Allowances are evaluated on each reporting date
wilh each portfolio receiving a separale review,

ViD-=15 | the E

The effects of the COVID-18 pandemic have been incorporated into the ECL modal through their impact on thie default probability, which
is based on historical data. White tha methodologies and assumplions applied in the expected credit loss (ECL) calculations hawve
remained unchanged from those applied in the prior financial year, the Group has incorporated estimales, assumplions and judgaments
specific o the economy's recovery from the impact of the COVID-19 pandamic. In the process, the model inputs, including
forward-looking information, together with the determination of the staging of exposures were revised.
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25 Fi L RISK MAN MEMN P I
Credit risk continved
Cradit risk concantration continued
The prncipal fisk the subsidiary company faces. under insurance conlracts is that the actual claims: and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This ks Influenced by the frequency of claims, seventy of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent
The Group performed mulliple ECL assessments using varying macroeconomic scenanos in the assessment of E_GL and updated the development of long-term claims. Thersfore, the objective of the subsitiary company is to ensure thal sufficient reserves are avallable to
Real GDP forecast {a key forward ln-ulejnu_g macroeconomic factor in the ECL model) based on the information avaifable as at repurl!ng cover these liabilities, The subsidiary company manages this risk by having reinsurance placed with counterparties that have a good credit
date io reflect changes in the economic circumstances, and subsaquently calculated and measured the expected credit loss. Information rating that are subject 1o regular reviews. The concentration of risk is avaided by following policy guidelines in respest of counterparties’
on GDP was used in the ECL model. The Resarve Bank of Fiji subsequently revised the value of the 2021 Real GDP post reporting date. limits that are sel each year by Ihe Board and are subject lo regular reviews. Al each reporting dale, managemen! performs an
However, the revision to 2021 GDP did not have & materisl impact on skpected credit loss, aseessmant of craditwenhiness of reinsurers and updates the relnsurance purchase sirateqgy. There has not bean malerial differences
o ) . . N _ } ) between the actual claims compared with estimates recordad in the accounts.
As uncertainties in economic conditions may persisl, considering the continued threat of COVID-19, actual resulls in future periods could
differ materally fram the ECL estimates. Liguidity risk
Information about the Group and the Company's exposura to credit risk and ECL for recefvables as at 30 June 2022 i sel out in Note 7. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and Company will be unable to meet iis payment obligations when they fall due under normal and
The summary of the Group and the Company's axposure to credit risk is as follow: siress crcumstances, To bmit this risk, management aims to match the maturity profile of i3 term deposit base s0 as o as closely as
possible match that of the loan portfolio. Management also manages liquidity placemenis so as o ensure adequate liquidity at all imes.
Group Company Cash flows and liguidity are monitorad on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash fliows and the availability of
2022 2021 2022 2021 maturing liquidity placemants to provide additional funding if required,
5 3 £ ]
STBQE 1= not ﬂ!dil Jmpairad and na SICR® 102.452.?33 1%,055,573 102.43‘9.?41] 105.“5.144 M’ ufﬂnm!' assels M
Slage 2 - SICR but nol credit impaired 23,390,628 36,730,632 23,390,628 36,730,634
Stage 3 - Credil impaired 12,644.312 15.244.854 12,644,312 15.244.804 The table below shows the financial assets and liabiiities analysed according to when they are expected 1o be recovered or settled. With
Gross Cradit Exposure 128,527,178 157,045,408 138,524.880 157,021,672 regard to Ioans and advances lo customers, the Group and Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavior that was
Less: aflowance for ECLYimpaiment losses {5,598 289) (17.145,081) (9.598,223) {17,145,081) used far estimating the EIR.
Wet Credit Exposura 128,928 884 139,900,325 128,926,391 139,876,501
30 June 2022
“Stage 1 for Group mcludes insurance premium receivable of 52,498 (2021; 523,734). Less than 3 8 12 months -5  More than §
g ASSETS et 3 -12 months ¥ Y Total
Credit risk cancenfrafion
Cash and cash equivalents 26078524 - . - 26078924
Credit risk concentration fs determined based on the industry for which the loan is given. An analysis of concentrations of credit sk from Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss 6,022,541 £ § : 6,022,541
|Dar|s and advances = shown balow: Debt financial assets at amortised cost 3.H9|3.ﬂﬂﬂ "IIJ.EW.DQD E.Eﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂﬂ 4?.?33..@ EE,UEB.GDO
Recaivable from customears 1,593,357 T.760,520 91,852,548 38,913,054 140,119,479
Group Company
202 20 2022 201 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
5 3 3 s
Due to customers 15,446,680 549,643,767 9{,541.015 B,534 679 174,166,241
Individuals 121279904  138.950,434 121,279,904 138 560,434 Trade and other payables 1,796,985 * = - 1,796,985
Professional and business services 0,398 420 9145018 8,388 420 9,145,018 Employes benefit liability 178,189 - - - 178,184
Agriculture 2 740 506 23080 613 2,740,506 2302 613 Uneamed pramium 357 466 1,661,442 4,498,381 595,320 7,112,608
Buflding and construction 2,067,245 1,883.373 2,067,245 1,883,373 Debt issued and other borrowed funds - 520,000 16,000,000 3,480,000 20,000,000
Transport, communication and storage 4,630,816 6,488,951 4,630,818 £.458.951 Lease labilities 303,171 634,501 2,083 498 752,383 3,843,553
140,116,981 158,870,380 140,116,981 158,870,389
Insurance pramium receivable 2,498 23,734 - -
140,119,479 158,804 123 140,116,981 158,870,384
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30 June 2021

Less than 3 12 months -5  More than 5
ASSETS months 312 monthe yirars Years Tatal
Cash and cash equivalents 42,648 575 - - - 42 848 575
Financlal assels at fair value through profit or loss 5,803,448 - - - 5803448
Debl financial assels 8t amortised cost 27,335,000 20,500,000 4,550,000 22,888,000 75,273,000
Receivable from customers 1.152,733 5,575,299 112,677,001 39,489,000 158,894,123
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Due to cuslomers 30,191,186 76,282,753 4§,708,357 B, 138 B37 213322133
Trade and other payables 2,239,928 - - - 2,239 928
Employee benefit liability 126,916 - - - 126,916
Unearmed premium 580,694 1,628,282 5,352 829 122471 7,683,876
Debt issued and other harrowed funds - - 12,520,000 7.480,000 20,000,000
Lease liabilities J1B,843 841,510 3,540,261 1,101,728 5,802 342
Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss ansing from systems failure, human emor. fraud and extemal events: When controls fail to perform,
operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have |egal or regulatory implicabions, or lead o financial crisis. The Group cannot
expact 1o eliminate afll operational rigk, but through a controd framework and by monitarng and responding to potential risks, the Group is
able 1o manage risks. Controls include effective segregation of dutles, access, authonsation and recenciliation procedures, stafl education
and assessment processes, including use of internal audit,

. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group and the Compeny's capilal management policy are fo maintain adequate capital to ensure
compliance with regulatory capital requirements, to support the growth of its business, and to maximise shareholder value,

The Group-and the Company manages iis capital structure and makes adjustments to it according o changes In economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to mainiain or adjust the capital siructure, the Group and the Company may adjust the
dividend paid to sharehaolders, raise capital, or retum capital to sharehaolders,

Capital managemeant is under constant review by the Board.

Regulatory capital Company
2022 2021

Tier 1 24,065,048 24,483 111

Tier 2 17,966,558 15,391,850

Total capital 42,082,004 39,874 961

Risk weighted assets 153,006,139 181,262,783

Tier 1 capital ratio 16% 14%
Total capital ratio 27% 22%
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26 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT continued

Under its license conditions with the Reserve Bank of Fiji (RBF), the Company is required to maintain a minimum of 15% of risk welghted
assels in total capital at-any point in time.

Regulatory capilal consisls of Tier 1 capital, which comprises of share capital, retained eamings less deferred 1ax assel and intangible
assets, The other component of regulatory capital is Tier 2 capital, which is made up of unaudited current year profit, Tier 2 Capital Bands
and credit loss reserve less defarred tax assal or 1,25% of risk weighled assels (whichever s lesser),

The coronavirus dissase (COVID-19) outbreak has developed rapidly, bringing a significant health impact globally. Measures laken to
contain the virus have had a significant impact on global markets and economic aclivity. Fiji has also fell the impact, wilth business
disruption and levels of aclivity reducing in- several economic sectors. The Group has remained operational since this declaration and
continues o engage in s principal aclivities.

©On 25 April 2021, In response o the COVID-19 pandemic, the Government announced a number of measures including lockdown of
certain containment areas wilhin Viti Levu. Under the lockdown restrictions, all nonessantial businesses weare required to close unless the

workplace was deamed part of a parmitted industry as set out by the Government, The introduction of these restrictions has not had a
materal effect on the Company's financial statements at 30 June 2022,

In July 2021 the Fijian Government ramped up its vaccination drive with a national targat of 80 percent of the target population to be fully
vactinated by 31 Oclober 2021. The Govermnment was able 1o aftain 80 percent in November and as a result the current containment
measuras with restrictions are sasing as tha fully vaccinated percentage increases. The duration and axtent of the pandemic and refatad
financial, social and pubtdic health impacts of the COVID-19 pandermic are uncerain,

The Directors and managemeant believe the Group has sufficient financial resources al this time to be able 1o successfully manage their
business risks within the curren! uncertain economic ouliook arising from the COVID-19 outbreak.

I BUSINESS ITY

The principal activibes of the Group during the year were thal of receiving deposits and extending ol credit and related services. There
was no significant change in the nature of this aclivity during the financial period,

The Company has a Subsidiary Company In Vanuatlu, Platinum Insurance Limited. The principal activity of the Subsidiary Is lo act as a
captive insurer underwriting loan protection insuranca for lis parent Company, Kontiki Finance Limited, based in the Republic of Fiji.

COMPANY DETAILS

Benistered office

Level 5 Tappoo City Building

GPO Box 12508

Suva

The Company is a limited labilty Company domiciled and incarporated in the Republic of Fiji.

The Company s listed on the South Pacific Stock Exchange.
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The places of business are located at Suva, Lautoka and Labasa,

28. COMPANY DETAILS continued 30. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE continued
Places of busingss Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

In Fabruary 2021, the IASE sued amandments 10 LAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of *accounting estimates’. The amendmants
clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of ermors. Also, they

1 d @ year 2022 2021 clarily how entities use measurement techniques and Inpuls to deveiop accounting estimatas
Execulive & ! The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
Finance o 28 24 palicies and changes in accounling estimates that occur on or after thie start of that period. Earigr application is permifted as long as this
Products and distribution B4 50 i
facl is disclosad.

Lending and comphiance 55 67
Other e 8 The amendments ase not expected to have a materal impact on the Group.

159 153

All emplovees are empioved by the Company and the Subsidiary does not have any emplovees.

. STANDARDS |SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The new and amended standards and inferpretations that are issued, bul not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group's
financial statements are disclosed below, The Group imlends to adopl these new and amended standards and interpretations, il
applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASE issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprahensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covenng recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(IFR3 4) thal was issued in 2005, IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts {L.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issus them, as well as to certain guaraniees and Tinancial instrumenis with discretionary participation
features. A few scope exceplions will apply, IFRS 17 infroduces new accounting requirements for banking products with Insurance
featuras that may affect the determinatian of which instruments or which components thereof will ba in the scope of IFRS 8 or IFRS 17.

Credit cards and similar products thal provide insurance coverage: mosl issuers of these products will ba abla lo continue with their
existing accounting treatment as a financial instrument under IFRS 9, IFR3 17 excludes from its scope credil card contracts {and other
simitar contracts that provide credit or payment armangamenis) that meet tha definition of an insurance contract if, and only if, the enlity
does not reflect an assessment of the insurance risk associated with an individual customer in setfing the price of the contract with that
customer

When the insurance coverage is provided as part of the contractual terms of the credit card, the issuer Is required 1o

+ Separate the Insurance coverage compenant and apply IFRS 17 to it; and

« Apply other applicable standards (such as IFRS 2, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracis with Customers or [AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Ligbilisies and Contingent Assets) fo the other components,

Lean confracts that meet the definition of insurance butl mil the compensation for insured events lo the amounl otherwise reguired 1o
seltie the policyhoider's obligation created by the contract: lssuers of such loans = e.g9. a loan with walver on death - have an option to
apply IFRS 9 or IFRS 17, The efection would be made at a portfolio level and would be irevocable,

IFRS 17 is affective for reporiing pedods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures requirad. Eardy application is
permitted, provided the enlily also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it lirsl applies IFRS 17,
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Disclosure of Accounting Policles - Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In Febngary 2021, the [ASB issued amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statemeni 2 Making Materiaiity Judgemants, in which it
provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy disclosures, The amendments aim to
help entiies provide accounting policy discloswes thal are more uselul by replacing the requirement for enlilies lo disclose their
‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement 1o disclose their 'matenial’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how enfiies
apply the concepl of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted. Since
the amendments to IFRS Praclice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on the application of the definiicn of material io
aAccounting pelicy information, an effective dale for these amendments ia nol necessary,

The amendments are not expected to have a matedal impact on the Group.

IFRS 9 Financlal Instruments — Foes in the "10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the |ASE issued amendment to IFRS 9. The amendment
clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether tha terms of a new or modified financial [ability are substanfially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the bomower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender an the olher's behalf, An entity applies the amendment to financial
lfabilitias that are modified or exchanged on or aftar the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendmeant.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoplion permitted, The Group
will apply the amendmeants lo financial Eabilities thal are modified or exchanged an or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the entity first applies the amendmaent.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.
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30. 5T i D T YET EFF VE
Amendments to 1AS 1

3.

In Janary 2020, the IASB issued amendmenis to paragraphs B9 1o 76 of 1AS 1 1o specily the requiremants for classifying liabilities as
currant or non-current, The amendments clarify:

+ What is meant by a8 right 1o defer settiement;

* That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting penod;

+ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise s delemal nght; and

+ That only if an embedded dervative in 8 converibla liability is ftsell an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact ils
classification

Thi amendments are effective for annual reporting perads beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be appled retrospactively, The
Group is currantly assessing the impact the amendmeants will have on curment prachice and whether existling lozn agreements may requing
reclassificalion

Amendments to IFRS 3

The amendments replace a reference to a previous version of the |1ASE’s Conceptual Framework with a reference lo the current version
issued in March 2018 without significanily changing its requirements. The amendments add an exceplion to the recognition principle of
IFRS 3 Business Combinations o avoid the issue of potential ‘day 2° gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that
would be within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lizkiliies and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Lavies, If incurred separately.
The sxoeption requires entities to apply the criteria in 1AS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, Instead of the Conceptual Framewark, fo
detarmine whether a present obligation exists al the acguisition date. The amandments also add 8 new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that
confingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

Thesa amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there were no contingent assets, liabilites
and contingant liabllitias within the scope of these amendmenis arisen durng tha period

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Direclors have examingd the Group's performance both from a business and a geographic perspective and have kdentified two
reportabie segments of its business:

- Finance business located in Fiji, receiving deposils and extending of credit and refated services, and
- Captive insurance business located in Vanuatu, underwriting of loan protection insurance for the firance business.
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31. SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

(a) Geographic Segments

The Group operates in the geographical segments of Fiji and Vanuatu and the activities are mantioned in Nole 31{b).

2022
Revenue

Interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method
Interest expense calculated using the elfective interest method
Other Interest and similar expense

Mat interest income

Fes income

Pramium incomis

Noen-trading income

Total revenue

Less: expenses

Movements in expected credit loss

Parsonnel Expenses

Depreciation of properly, ptant and equipment

Amortisation of intangibée assels

Other operating expensas

Total operaling expenses

Oparating profit before tax

Profit bafore tax

Income tax expanse
Met profit after tax
Total assets

Total abilities

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows rom investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

ONTIKI
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Fiji Vanuatu Inter Segment Total
5 3 5 &
36,745,018 180,206 - 36,935,214
{9,222.177) - - {89,222177)
{1,486.108) (12.373) (1,498 474)
26,036,735 177,923 - 26,214,658
1,023,587 E - 1,023 587
- 2,151,359 2,151,380
1,083,395 435,982 - 1,518,357
28,143,717 2,765,284 - 30,808,001
(6,586.086) - % (6, 566,086)
{8,280.285) » = (8,280.286)
(2,082,308) (20.628) (2,112,936)
1215.209) . 215,209}
{4,123 673) 11.814,225) 102,177 (5,835,722)
(21,297 562) (1,834 B54) 102,177 {23,030,239)
6,846,155 930,430 102,177 7,878,782
(661 828) - - (661,826}
6,184,329 830,430 102,177 7,216,936
229,680,688 12,651,327 (68T.169) 241,744,846
199,927,833 8,884,184 {408,585) 208,402,432
(15,815,182} {990,043) - (16,805,225)
3,947 B45 251,751 E 4,199,506
{3,848.621) (15,101) {3,965.022)
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31. SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

31, SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

2021 Fiji Wanuatu Inter Segment Total {b) Business Segmant
Revenue 5 5 % s
The following summary describes the operations of sach business segment.
Inferest revenue calculated using the effective interest mathad 43,437,831 204,058 - 43,641,987 Business segments
_ Financea Receiving deposits and exdending of credit and related services
Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method {11,755.735) - {11,7565,735) Insurance Undanwriting of loan protection insurance
Othar Interest and similar expensea (1,105,867} (1,105,667}
The geographical and business segment information is the same for 2022 and 2021 as per Note 31a.
Net interast incomse 30,576.529 204 058 - 30,780.585 a1z, I El
Fee inoome 18,4 % - 1 ) ) ) ) ) -
g 019,406 918406 No maiter or clrcumsiances have arisen since the end of the financial period which significantly affected or may significantly allect the
Pramilm eome - 2 355 456 ~ 2363 456 operations of the Group and the Company, the resulls of those operations, or the stale of affairs of the Group and the Company In future
; pRae financial periods.
MNor-lrading income 1,078,205 98171 1,177,466
Total revenue A2, 573.230 2 656 683 35.228.913
Less: axpanses
Movements in allowance for impairmeant lossas {14,928.717) - (14.920.717)
Personnel Expenses (7.589,965) - - (7,589,665)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {2,037.949) - - {2,037 249)
Amortisation of intangible assels (261.874) - (261.874)
Cther operaling expenses {3.555.041) (1.680.973) {575.965) (5.811.979)
Total operating expansas (28,374 548) (1,680 973) (575 965) {30 631 484)
Operating profit before tax 4,198 684 ars. 710 {575,965) 4,598,429
Profit before tax
Income tax expense (330,948} - (330.948)
Wet profit after tax 3867736 875,710 (575,965) 4 267 481
Total assels 268,163,010 12,615,508 (1,191,198) 279587320
Total liabilities 241,866 538 9.878.788 (811,430) 250933804
Cash flows from operating activities 15,042,738 (438,844) % 14,603,885
Cash flows from investing activities 19,338,252 1,413,282 - 20,751,534
Cash flows used In financing activities (4.951.365) . (4,951 365)
KONTIK] KONTIKI
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Statement of interest (direct and indirect) of Directors and senior management in the share capital of the
Company as at 30 June 2022 under rule 51.2(iv) of the Listing Rules.

South Pacific Stock Exchange

Listing Requirements
(Other Information)

No. of Shares Held

Position ] No. of Shares Held Indirectly
Directly

Daryl Tarte Director 352,582 O
Shareholdings of those persons holding twenty (20) largest blocks of shares as required under Glen Craig Director 0 4541730
rule 51.2(v) of the Listing Rules.
Griffon Emose Director 1,719,110 0
Top 20 Shareholders Litia
Shareholder Name Number of Shares Percenatge Holding Niumataiwaly Director 0 0
1 Impala Investments Pte Limited 18,243,206 19.62% - ‘
2 Corbett Holdings Pte Limited 14,982,723 16.11% Barry Whiteside  Director 2>/.889 o
3 Retail Holdings Limited 4,541,730 4.88% Chirk Yam Director 0 O
4 Chen Hui Lin 5,240,770 549% Greg Cathcart Senior Manager 601,963 14,982,723
5 Parshotam I_avvyers'As Administrators Of 3024159 3559,
Estate Of George Niumataiwalu e David Oliver Senior Manager 239,642 18,243,206
6 Chen Li Lan 2,408,100 2.59% o )
7 Melanesian Capital Pte Ltd 1,855,483 200% Chillip tacey >enior Manager 1143414 0
8 Lau Wai Yuk 1,849,390 1.99%
9 Rodney Wicks 1,836,290 197% Disclosure on the trading results of each subsidiary under rule 51.2(x) of Listing Rules.
10 Griffon Emose 1,719110 1.85%
12 Chen, Huei-Shr 1,609,356 1.73%
13 Lin Jin Man 1,460,587 157% Name of Subsidiary Platinum Insurance Limited
14 Bus Behind Limited 1,555,226 1.46% Principal Country of Operation Vanuatu
15 Mitchell Family Trust 1,289,991 1.39% '
16 Ludwigson Holdings Pty Ltd 1287308 138% Country of Incorporation Vanuatu
17 Jayne Marie Craig 1,249,000 134% Turnover $2,218,545
18  Jugu Development Corporation Limited 1,185,579 1.28% Other Income 5628112
19  Chai Huei Chen 1,149,149 1.24%
20  Erik Larson & Amy Lynn Bergquist 1,145,703 1.23% Depreciation and Amortisation Nil
Others 25,931,806 27.89% Interest Expense Nil
Total Shares on Issue 92,984,698 100%
Income Tax Nil
Distribution schedule of each class of equity security setting out the number of holders and
percentage as required under rule 51.2(vi) of the Listing Rules. Other Expenses $1916,233
No. of Shareholders Shareholding Total Percentage Holding Net Profit after Tax 5930424
53 0-500 0.01% Assets $12,551,327
103 501-5,000 0.22% o
Liabilities $8,884,183
23 5,001-10,000 0.19%
23 10,001-20,000 0.34% Shareholders Funds S3,667144
10 20,001-30,000 0.27%
9 30,001-40,000 0.34%
7 40,001-50,000 0.36%
22 50,001-100,000 1.90%
54 100,001-1,000,000 20.74%
23 > 1,000,000 75.63%
327 Total Shares on Issue 100.00%
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Group Five Years Financial Performance under rule 51.2 (xiv) of Listing Rules.

Year ended 30 June

Net profit after tax 5,365,448 9,375,985 7,284,837 4,267,481 7,216,936
Assets 162,798,468 194,624,546 263,156,037 279,587,320 241,744,846
Liabilities 143,931,022 170,000,008 235,001,915 250,933,894 208,402,432
Shareholders’ equity 18,867,446 24,624,538 28154122 28,653,426 33,342,414

Share register, registered and principal administrative office and company secretary

Registered and principal administrative office Registry Office
Central Share Registry Pte Limited
Shop 1 and 11 Sabrina Building

Victoria Parade, Suva.

Kontiki Finance Limited
Level 5 Tappoocity Building
Thomson Street

Suva GPO Box 11689
Fiji Suva
Telephone (679) 330 3400 Fiji

Email: enquiries@kontikifinance.com Telephone (679) 330 4130

Website: kontikifinance.com

The company is incorporated in Fiji with limited liability and is listed on the South Pacific Stock Exchange.

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is Beatrice Wong.

Per share information
Disclosure on shares under rule 51.2(xv) of the Listing Rules

Year ended 30 June

Earnings per share (cents) 0.06 0.10 0.08 0.05 0.08
Dividends per share (cents) 0.030 0.052 0.045 0.045 0.050
Net tangible assets per share 0.21 0.27 0.31 0.31 0.36
Highest market price per share (S) 1.25 1.30 1.30 1.25
Lowest market price per share (3) 0.94 0.95 0.79 0.90
Market price per share at end of financial year (S) 1.00 0.98 125 114

sy, KOMTIKI
EoNT

ANNEXURE P : Annual Compliance Report on Corporate Goverance

The table below summarises the status of compliance with Annexure P of the listing rules issued by SPX

providing details where it has not been explained in the Corporate Goverance Report

Principle

1. Establish clear
responsibilities for
board oversight

2. Constitute an
effective Board

sy, KONTIKI
enT

Requirement Status

Separation of duties: Clear
separation of duties between Yes
Board and Senior Management.

Board Charter: Adopt a Board
charter detailing functions and Yes
responsibilities of the Board.

Board Composition: Balanced
Board Composition with
Executive and Non- Executive
directors of which 1/3rd of
total number of directors to be
independent directors.

Yes

Gender Diversity: Do you have

a policy for promoting gender
diversity at Board level and have
you achieved your policy goals?

Yes

Nomination Committee:
Selection, approval, renewal
and succession of Directors to
be conducted by Nomination
Committee in accordance with
Articles of Association of the
Company and Fit and Proper
Policy of Reserve Bank.

Yes

Board Evaluation: Process of
evaluation of performance of
the Board, its Committees and
individual directors. Evaluation
to be linked to key performance
indicators of the listed entity.

Yes

Directors Training: Directors’

training and induction procedure

to be in place to allow new Yes
directors to participate fully and

effectively.

Board Sub-committees:

Board must have sub-
committees which must at a
minimum include -

+ Audit Committee No

+ Risk Management Committes;
and

+ Nomination Committee/
Recruitment Committee.

Compliance

Details

In place and included in KFL Board
Charter

Board Charter is in place

In compliance. Board comprises of 6
directors with 4 Independent Directors

As an Equal Opportunity Employer,

the board promotes gender diversity,
however appointment is done on merit,
competence and performance to build a
diversified and inclusive board.

KFL has a Renumeration and Nomination
Committee who review not only the
nomination, selection and remuneration
of Senior Executives/Heads of Control
Functions/Material risk-takers of KFL
but of Directors as well. Rotation

and Nomination of directors is done

in accordance with KFL's Articles of
Association and RBF's Supervision
Policy Statement 10 (Fit & Proper
Requirements for LFI's). Appointments
are approved at the AGM.

The Board has 'Meeting' Assessments
after every Ordinary Meeting and

an Annual Assessment of Individual
Directors.

In place.

Due to its size, KFL has a combined
the Audit & Risk Commiittee. KFL also
has a Remuneration and Nominations
Committee (RENOM).
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Principle

3. Appointment
of Chief Executive
Officer/Managing
Director

4. Appointment
of a Board and
Company Secretary

5. Timely and
balanced disclosure

6. Promote ethical
and responsible
decision- making

7. Register of
Interests

Compliance

Requirement Status

CEQO: To appoint a suitably
qualified and competent Chief
Executive Officer/ Managing
Director

Yes

Company Secretary: Board to
appoint a suitably qualified and
competent Company Secretary,
who is accountable to the Board,
through Chair, for all compliance
and governance issues.

Yes

Annual Reports: Timely and
accurate disclosures are made in
Annual reports as per Rule 51 of
Listing Rules.

Yes

Payment to Directors and Senior
management:

Sufficient information to be Yes
provided to shareholders on

remuneration paid to Directors

and Senior management.

Continuous Disclosure:

General disclosures or company
announcements to be made in a

timely manner. The disclosures

should be factual without Yes
omitting material information

and to be expressed in a

clear and objective manner to

shareholders.

Code of Conduct:

To establish a minimum Code

of Conduct of the listed entity

applicable to directors, senior Yes
management and employees

and conduct regular trainings on

the same.

Conflicts of Interest:

Transactions with related parties

resulting in conflict of interest Yes
are disclosed and a register is

maintained for this purpose.

Details

In Compliance and included in the
Board Charter and RENOM Charter.
Also in accordance with RBF's Fit &
Proper Assessments.

In Compliance. Goverened by the
RENOM Committee Charter, the
Committee identifies and assess
proposed canidates for the role and
then make their recommendation to
the Board for approval.

In Compliance and as per SPX listing
rules

Disclosure is made in the Annual
Financial Statements and Annual
Report

In compliance with SPX Listing Rules

In Compliance. Code of Conduct for
directors and employees is noted

in the Corporate Goverance Policy.
This is also relayed to them during
Induction training.

In Compliance. Register of Interest
in place for directors and is tabled
at every Meeting. For employees, it
is noted in the Corporate Goverance
Policy.

sy, KOMTIKI
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Principle

8. Respect
the rights of
shareholders

9. Accountability
and audit

sy, KONTIKI
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Requirement Status

Communication with shareholders:

To design communication strategy

to promote effective communication

with shareholders and encourage

their participation. Examples: Yes
Communication through Annual

Reports, Annual General Meetings,

or any other means of electronic
communication.

Website:

To create and maintain a Website

of the listed entity to communicate

effectively with shareholders and Yes
other stakeholders. All matters of

importance to be updated regularly

on the Website.

Grievance Redressal Mechanism:

To establish a Grievance Redressal

Mechanism for Shareholders to Yes
address shareholders complaints

and grievances.

Shareholders’ Complaints:

To provide the number of

shareholders’ complaints received Yes
and attended to during the year.

Provide reasons if any complaint is

unresolved or unattended.

Corporate Sustainability:

To adopt a business approach that

creates long-term shareholder

value by embracing opportunities, Yes
managing risks, maximising profits

and minimising negative social,

economic, and environmental

impacts.

Internal Audit:

To appoint an internal auditor or an

alternative mechanism to achieve Yes
the objectives of risk management,

control and governance.

External Audit:

To appoint an external auditor who Yes
reports directly to the Board Audit
Committee.

Rotation of External Auditor:

To appoint the external auditor for

a fixed term requiring senior partner Yes
of the audit firm to rotate once in

every three or less financial years.

Audit Committee:

To establish an Audit Committee

comprising of at least 3 members of Yes
which majority are independent and

Chair is not Chair of the Board.

Compliance

Details

Communication with shareholders
done via Market Announcements,
emails to individual shareholders,
Annual Reports and General
Meetings.

Website : www.kontikifinance.com

In Compliance. Shareholder
Grievance Policy in place.

No complaints received during the
year.

In Compliance. This is noted in the
Corporate Governance Policy.

Appointed by the Audit and Risk
Committee

Appointed at the AGM by
shareholders through the Group
Audit and Risk Committee

The board conducts review of the
auditor engagement on an annual
basis; and confirmed at the AGM.

In compliance. The Group Audit
& Risk Committee is made up
of 3 members, all of which are
independent. Chairman of the
Board is not Chair of any of the
Board Sub-Committees.

87



Compliance

Principle Requirement Status Details Company Details Name: Kontiki Finance Limited
10. Risk Risk Management Policy: Date of Incorporation: 26 July 2006
Management To establish a Risk Management Place of Incorporation: Suva
Policy to address risk oversight, risk Risk Management Policy in place Company No. 18908
management and internal control. and in compliance of requirements TIN No: 50-51838-0-2
The Policy to clearly define the roles stated. : : .
and responsibilities of the Board, Head Office: Level 5, TappooCity Building,
Audit committee, management and Thomson Street, Suva
internal audit function. Phone: 330 3400
Whistle Blower Policy: Fax: 330 3401
As part of risk management A . Email: enquiries@kontikifinance.com
strategy, establish a Whistle Blower In Compliance. KFL has a Whistle
Policy by creating a mechanism Blower Policy (for reporting of
of reporting concerns of unethical unet‘mcal bghawour) and the Insider External Auditor Ernst & Young
behavior, actual or suspected fraud Trading Policy (for prevention of i
or violation of the listed entity’s Insider Trading). Level 7, Pacific House
code of conduct or ethics policy, 1 Butt Street
SPX Rules or Companies Act. SUVE
Solicitors Munro Leys Lawyers

Level 3, Pacific House
1 Butt Street

Suva
Investment Advisor Kontiki Capital Pte Limited
& Listing Manager Level 2, Plaza 1, FNPF Boulevard
33 Ellery Street
Suva
Capital Markets and Reserve Bank of Fiji
Financial Markets Tower 4, RBF Building
Regulator Pratt Street
Suva
Securities Exchange South Pacific Stock Exchange

Shop 1 and 11 Sabrina Building
Victoria Parade, Suva.

GPO Box 11689

Suva, Fiji

Share Registry Central Share Registry
Shop 1 and 11 Sabrina Building
Victoria Parade, Suva.
GPO Box 11689
Suva, Fiji
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